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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEhEEBEEBASEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 76, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(BEREAHMNMEHZ E) and was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a Cambodian
Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong Kong company in 1968
as an importing agent for watch distribution business in Cambodia, had
extensive experience of distributing watches in Cambodia and Vietnam.
Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna and Mr. Duong
Ming Chi, Henry and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a controlling
shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, aged 53, was educated at the
University of Southern California. Mr. Duong has more than 30 years
of experiences in the watch branding and retailing industries. He
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 7th July
2011. Before that, he was appointed as the Executive Director from
the listing of the Company in 1989 and subsequently resigned on
31st August 1996 to pursue his personal career. Mr. Duong is a son
of the Chairman, Executive Director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, Mr. Eav Yin and is the elder brother of Ms. Eav Guech
Rosanna, who is an Executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna, aged 46, holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree in Marketing from Adelphi University in the
U.S.A. She is currently the chief executive officer of Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Before joining the Group
in 1993, she worked in a major international US Bank specializing in
local corporate companies. Ms. Eav is a daughter of the Chairman,
Executive Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Eav
Yin and is the sister of Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, who is an Executive
Director of the Company. She was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21st August 2015.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 58, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai is an existing
independent non-executive director of Guorui Properties Limited
which was listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 7th
July 2014. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai held directorship as
independent non-executive director of The Sun’s Group Limited during
the years from 2002 to 20083.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 46, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted to
both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in 1993.
Ms. Wong is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th
December 2006. She is also a member of the nomination committee,
the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 46, has more than 20 years
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a
firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 48, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has more than 20 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.

EENEEBEERASEHN

BYFHTES

BEHLE BEL+H\H REBHIEMBEEERE
BREBEZFFUSMBEG2EE  R—NANAFN
ANBHRZERARRIEYIFNATES - BARAR
AEREZEEGIRRRREZEGNFMER®RE -
BEEAR-_ZT-—FE_ZZ=FHRBKER/ETEN
EMBgzEXABEZRIERE BEEE-NANZ
FREBASXNSM 2 FHRE  UHEMERAL
ERE - -BAEEREREXRBRAFREZH LY
TEF(EROR=_Z—MFLtALEBEFTBEHRERS
PIERARLT) BEAFAERENXARBZIRE
BEITEMG - —ZE_FE_ZT=_FHH BELL
RAEHREEEGRAAZBIIFNTESRA -

IR RFOTAE > — AN _FEXEREE R
FUAEKing’s College * BUSREZRE T » R
—NN=FEERERE (EEMiddle Temple) %X &FE K
RE e ERERBBREREM - —TTXRF+ A
TARBE BEEERARRBIIENTESE  KRAKIT
RARBRLEZES BERZEGRFMEESZE -

FEFRE BRFOTAR NSRBI TEES
BB TF&R IREE—HAEXSHMITNEE
BREE -FTEEREBRHWEHABHEFSEAMASE
AEGE . TABEGMAGRAESTFARER
MABERER WRHABTERIABLRERBEL
B - —TZRF+_A+RB BRZER/ART
BYFRTES WAFTHZESEIRLAKFAA
NEERZEERREEEGEE -

SEBEIRAS

MERAE WA\ —T—TFMALEE - &%
SHEPBREFITEAEFBRB - TFNER - BEE
ERRIRBGHEXE LB NBE LB - BEE
RARARZHBHRER RRMWE

Annual Report 2016 |5



1.2& 3. BRAFW FEERIVE Hht | it BHIE

4. BRARW EGMTE IFHE F5E




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

agan
BIREs15m A N
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR E
2016 2015 Change
—E-XF —ZT—RfF BE)
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET B&E5Tr
Operations K
Revenue SESUON 834 719 16
Loss attributable to owners EBRARREAEAZER
of the Company (36) (31) N/A
TE A
Loss per share — Basic BREE-ER (2.28 HK cents) (2.11 HK cents) N/A
(2.28381ll) (2.117811l) TEH
Interim dividend declared and paid B EM RIKE 2+ RS - -
Final dividend proposed after WMEARBRRERE
the end of the reporting period RHEAR B - -
Financial position B 3 AR R
Total assets BEE 705 732 (4)
Equity attributable to SFEBRARAEA AR
owners of the Company 406 411 (1)

Non-controlling interests

FEFERR AR R A 2 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year was HK$834 million which was 16%
higher than HK$719 million of last year. Gross profit margin dropped
slightly from 21% to 20% due to intense market competition. Sales
from mainland China were increased by 10% to HK$376 million while
average same store sales in China were increased by 3%. Sales in
Hong Kong were also increased by 22% to HK$457 million due to the
increasing effort of the Group to focus on big customers.

During the year, the Group closed 1 store in Shenyang and opened a
new one in the same area.

The total number of stores is as below:
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2016 2015
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Beijing b 3 3
Shanghai & 3 3
Shenyang &5 1 1
Chengdu Bk %D 2 2
Hong Kong BB 1 1
10 10
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Results review

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$834 million for the year ended
31st March 2016 (2015: HK$719 million), which was 16% higher than
last year. Sales from the mainland China increased by 10% to HK$376
million as compared with HK$343 million of last year was due to the
increasing effort of the Group to focus on big customers during the
year. Sales in Hong Kong also increased by 22% to HK$457 million as
compared with HK$374 million of last year due to the increasing effort
of the Group to focus on big customers as well.

Distribution costs decreased by 12% to HK$204 million as compared
with HK$230 million of last year was mainly due to the decrease in
depreciation charge, rental and staff cost due to the closure of stores
and tightening control in expenses. Administrative expenses slightly
decreased by 3% to HK$28 million as compared with HK$29 million of
last year.

Valuation gains on investment properties amounted to HK$0.3 million
which were negligible as compared with HK$40 million in last year due
to the slightly downturn of the property market in Hong Kong.

Other net gain amounting to HK$12 million this year was mainly due to
the gain from the disposal of trading securities.

Finance costs decreased by 37% to HK$5 million as compared with
HK$8 million of last year was due to the decrease in bank loans during
the year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2016, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$33 million (2015: HK$23 million). The increase was mainly due
to the cash inflow from operating and investing activities despite the
repayment of bank loans during the year. The Group has secured
banking facilities amounting to a total of HK$133 million which were
secured by leasehold properties, prepaid lease payments, investment
properties, rental assignment, as well as unlimited corporate guarantee
provided by the Company. Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a
ratio of total borrowing, over total equity, was 25% as at 31st March
2016 (2015: 27%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks, and when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.

12 B515m MK i
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIR@B51:m MK D ifr

Prospects

The loss of the Group amounting to HK$36 million this year. Excluding
the valuation gains on investing properties, the Group actually
improved significantly as compared with last year.

The Group operates 10 stores in Hong Kong and China. The Group
closed 1 store in Shenyang and opened a new one in the same area
during the year. The Group has streamlined the operating cost of a
number of core stores during the year and will continue to do so with a
view to enhance the cost efficiency of each store. The overall sentiment
in the luxury retail business in Hong Kong and China still remained
weak due to the slowdown of the economic growth in China and Hong
Kong, the shift of spending pattern of the mainland tourists and the
continuation of anti-corruption drive in China.

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence
to turnaround its business and take a cautious approach in its future
expansion.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
supportive of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.

12| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 on the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 17 on the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2016 and the state
of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 38 to 126.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2016
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 12.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 and 12 of this annual report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 and 12 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 29 on the financial statements.

Changes in issued share capital of the Company in last year are also
outlined below:

On 24th September 2014, the Company, Century Hero International
Limited (the “Vendor”) and Get Nice Securities Limited as agent of
the Vendor entered into the placing agreement to place the shares
comprising up to 200,000,000 issued shares owned by the Vendor at
the price of HK$0.2550 per share.

The Vendor and the Company, upon their execution of the placing
agreement, also entered into the subscription agreement to top up the
shareholdings of the Vendor in the Company. Under the subscription
agreement, the Vendor subscribed for the subscription shares in the
equivalent number of the placing shares placed out. The subscription
shares were issued at HK$0.2550 per share, being equivalent to the
placing price. The subscription agreement was completed on 8th
October 2014 and the Company had issued 200,000,000 ordinary
shares pursuant to the subscription agreement. The above transactions
generated a net proceeds of approximately HK$49.7 million which was
mainly used as general working capital and, in a lesser proportion,
to repay its loans, including bank loans. Further details of the above
transactions are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
24th September 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRS

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31st March 2016 (2015: nil).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 17 on the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 on the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 16 on the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 31 on the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of Company'’s listed securities during the year.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 24 on the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 53% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 97% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
20% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

14| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on pages 127 to 128.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson (resigned on 21st August 2015)
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna (appointed on 21st August 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Lai Si Ming and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Mr. Eav Yin shall retire voluntarily at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERTBIOIBRASKRRMN  BFARMKRESD

Zigm

RZZB-—RF=ZA=+—B ARAEELTETH
ABEARBREEMAAEEE (EEE(EHLBE
GBI (38 7 R B E R 01 1) SEXVER) iy - HE B {D
SEFETEE  MRIEEF LB EHEXVEETR
F80 MABMA R R MR FAME R MOAR (BHER
BESMPERIZZEGEXREREFLRAES
ZEmEORR) - IREBE F R B ERAIFE352155 E
AIAMENABRTHEFZECMREKBETEHAR
SAARARES EMARR (T EMmRAD) M+ mE
ZETBETABRETESFRSNRESTA ([REST
Al EBAMARR R ER LOARIT -

RAE2SRMREIBEARMB2ER

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BESR BEREE BT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 02 TEER IR 45
EEHE EREE HERHEHE BYESH
%

Mr. Eav Yin B ks Note ff i+ 804,007,473 51.31
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna B g+ Personal {8 A 1,624,272~ 0.10
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry HRELE Personal {8 A 4,089,600" 0.26
Mr. Lai Si Ming RBEBERLE Personal {8 A 366,625* 0.02
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline FrEGZ L Personal i A 366,625* 0.02
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent FEFLAE Personal & A 366,625* 0.02

Note: Among the 804,007,473 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 70,688,600 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin of which 2,933,000 shares are share options, (b) 5,309,200 shares
are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 582,421,337
shares by Century Hero International Limited, (d) 1,864,800 shares by
Debonair Company Limited, (e) 19,972,728 shares by Goodideal Industrial
Limited, (f) 2,550,672 shares by Hexham International Limited, (g) 2,846,536
shares by Goodness Management Limited and (h) 118,353,600 shares
by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust). Century Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited,
Hexham International Limited, and Goodness Management Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav
Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the
founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.
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All the 4,089,600 shares are personal interest of Mr. Duong Ming Chi,
Henry.

All the interests are related to the share options held by the respective
Directors.

B All the 1,624,272 shares are personal interest of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna.

Save as disclosed herein and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME”, as at 31st March 2016, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group had made certain continuing connected transactions with
a connected person group during the four financial years ended 31st

March 2016, details as below:

Transactions with the following entities are considered as continuing
connected transactions for the relevant years.
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Name of party Relationship

8 22RES

Eav Yin The Chairman and executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company

Bz KRR EFEFNTES RIERAR

Connected Persons Group

Companies ultimately controlled by an associate of Mr. Eav Yin and for the

avoidance of doubt, excluding the Group

Lucky Linker Limited
BEALTEBKE

REBBCEE—RBRERRTEN AR ARERRE  TEELAEH

A member of the Connected Persons Group
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2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-RF —T-RF —T-MmMFE —T-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
HiiE FET FET FET FET
Sales of watch movements to: HEFHRELT
a member of Connected Persons Group HEATEEKE (iv) 690 1,223 1,869 4,471
Purchase of watch movements from: REFREEH
a member of Connected Persons Group MEATEEKE (iv) - - 359 -
Provision of subsidised advertising REESEHRTSE
and marketing support to: EEXE 7! 0]
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited - 208 3,000 1,950
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEBEKE 2,496 953 - -
2,496 1,161 3,000 1,950
Leasing of offices and warehouses to: HEBRAERAET :
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited (i) 360 360 264 126
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 947 862 866 564
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 729 748 758 738
2,036 1,970 1,888 1,428
Purchase of products from: REEmH: (iii)
a member of Connected Persons Group ~ BB A L& @K E 228 450 896 5,288
a member of Connected Persons Group ~ BB A LS£EKE - 8 64 67
a member of Connected Persons Group ~ BB A LS EKE - 8 67 456
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited 43 2,272 1,314 3,054
271 2,738 2,341 8,865
Notes: o
(i)  Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing support services () BUHESSYRTEEBIERE
The Group participated in the marketing programs and activities for 7 £ [ £ 82 g Lucky Linker Limited % Bii@ A T &£ Bk B
promoting and enhancing the image of branded watches supplied by Lucky Bt IR EI RS UMEEMINR R TN
Linker Limited and a member of Connected Persons Group. In return, Lucky % o Bt - BLucky Linker Limited % B33 A + £ E 5%
Linker Limited and a member of Connected Persons Group subsidised the BEEAEEY N ESHIEABHAER -
Group by paying an advertising subsidy to the Group.
(ii) Leasing of offices and warehouses (i) HEBRAZRAE
The Group leased certain premises owned by the Group to Lucky Linker EEERAEAEEFELE 2 E FWE FLucky Linker
Limited and other members of the Connected Persons Group for rental Limited i@ A T EEHMKE A TEAR S WA -
income.
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(i)

(iv)

Purchase of products

The Group purchased products from Lucky Linker Limited and other
members of the Connected Persons Group including watches, watch spare
parts and components (including watch movements), watch accessories
and packaging. The Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and repairs to the Connected
Persons Group. The purchase of products includes the fees and charges for
these services.

Trading of watch movements

The Group conducted trading of watch movements with a member of the
Connected Persons Group.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(a)

(b)

(c)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties; and

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, has confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that:

1.

the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company;

the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions; and

have exceeded the cap.

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected
transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2016, which may also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules, are disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction are carried out and disclosed in
compliance with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director
of the Company or his connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”).

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on 20th September
2012 and no new share option scheme has been adopted thereafter.

The Company has issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options
to the qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the
exercise prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share
respectively. Upon the completion of the share consolidation and
rights issue in January 2013 and February 2013 respectively, both the
exercise prices and the numbers of share options have been adjusted
according to the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 2016,
the outstanding amount of share options was 20,355,020.
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As at 31st March 2016, the Directors and employees of the Company
had the following interests in share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company (market value per share at 31st March 2016 was
HK$0.185) granted for a nominal consideration under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. The share options are unlisted. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$0.2 of the Company.
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SSEEWRS
No. of shares
No. of share No.of  acquired on
options share exercise of
outstanding ~ No. of share options share  No.ofshare  No. of share
at the options lapsed options options options Period Period during
beginning of granted during during  re-classified  outstanding during which which share
the year during the year the year  during the year  at year end share options options are Exercise
£ the year E EnfrE KEREN 33 are vested exercisable price per
Directors WATEN  ERREN ¥z BREES  ABzERE  HAGEN  Dateofgrant (551 ] BEiT: share
g2 BRE®E  BREHR  BRENE  ZRfi®E BB BREEE  RARW ERENAR ERENAR SHRAEE
Mr. Eav Yin 2,933,000 - - - - 2933000 3fstMarch 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
Brss 5-F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
=R=1-H ZE-IEASTAE ZT-CECACtAE
_T NEZR=TA :%: EZf=1R
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 2,199,750 - - - (2,199,750) - 3fstMarch 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
CEE 2E--k 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 1304%T
(resigned on 21st August 2016) ZR=1-A CE-IFCRSTEE . CE-IESfStEE
(W=E-1ENA-T-BRE) “E-7FzR=1H e )
Mr. Lai Si Ming 366,625 - - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
RIELE % 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
=A=1-A “§-CEZf=tRE  ZE-CEZh-TRE
E-7FZA=TH :?:*%HZ‘E
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 366,625 - - - - 366,625 st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
IEnar 5k 30th Merch 2016 301h March 2021 134ET
=A=t-A ZE-ESRZRE ZE-FZACTRE
“E-REZRZ1H I R
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 366,626 - - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
FERRE 5-f 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
=A=1-R “5-CF-f-fRE  -5-ZEzfAztEZ
§-EZAZTH ZEZ-EZRZTH
Employees 15,178,275 - (1,085,880) - 2,199,750 16,322,145 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
EI 5-f 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 1.304ET
ZA=t-H “§-ZEZRZtHE ZE-CEZAztRE
oz /ﬁ A=A Z52-EZR=1H
Total 21,410,900 - (1,055,880) - - 20,355,020
L
The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the BErTgEscBEREONSES 2ERTEAM
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing NEBER#EBA RZTE——F=A=+—H &_ z
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant ——F+AZ+AB ARFzZRHUTEZEERH

of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were B& X7 5 IR 9 Bl A0.397% 7T 20.2675 T, °
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

During the year, 1,055,880 share options were lapsed under the 2002 FERN BE T - FEIRMET 21,055,880 8 ik
Share Option Scheme. BEE AR o
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme as disclosed herein, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent on 31st August 2010, pursuant to
which the placing agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to
subscribe for convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) issued by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000
on a “best-efforts” basis. On 27th September 2010, the Company
completed the placing of HK$100,800,000 Convertible Notes to
independent placees. The Convertible Notes carry interest at 3% per
annum and the principal amounts of all Convertible Notes shall be
due and repayable on the third anniversary of the date of issue. The
Convertible Notes entitle their holders to convert their outstanding
principal amounts into new conversion shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.84 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Notes, the Conversion Price of the Convertible Notes was adjusted
from HK$0.84 per Conversion Share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share
as a result of the share subdivision approved by the shareholders of
the Company on 12th November 2010. The above adjustment took
effect from the close of business of 15th November 2010. Upon the
completion of the share consolidation and the rights issue in January
2013 and February 2013, the conversion price of the Convertible Notes
was further adjusted to HK$1.68 and HK$0.573 per share respectively.
The final adjustment was effective on 16th January 2013. The
General Mandate (2009), which has not been used before the placing
agreement, was used for the allotment and issue of the conversion
shares. On 27th September 2013, all outstanding Convertible Notes
have been redeemed by the Company.
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On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”).
The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award
and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging or facilitating the
holding of shares by those selected employees of the Group who, as
determined by the Board, are eligible to participate in the plan and to
whom new shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use
of the plan to award new shares to those selected employees of the
Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2016 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2016, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:

RIZ—ZFFNATZ=0 " ARRBRRIERARND
K@ ([ REFH (T —FF))) - RO ER
(=2 —2F) T FHR BRI R L %At
g EERBRENZEHETEECRAERSH
ZAtBZARBEERREBRARD - W EBRIK
- -BEERZMZE  URAENEIIEAEERE
BRAEEFHERZ REYEDH -

BN RZZ-—REF=ZA=Z+—BARALERITE
mkES  BRE - RRELEUEN  URRE
NEB|BETRTEREMZEREMATRBES  BR
- RS ELER -

BRARPZEKRIES

R=B—AG= A=+ BEMALAEERE
EFRABFA - THIAL (FAAEEREETRA
BB SN RAL T2 45 BABRIRR A 0 A A2 RIS B
FRAS%HRE % - IR ES S GO EXVE B2 R
SHH KX ANAATRE - RRFRAAFAFEE
2B R M RS R DI E336/E T R 2 1
WA

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each/

underlying Approximate

shares held percentage of

BREE issued share

FRKRo.2}8 T capital

Name of shareholder Notes ZER EEBITRA

KRR EB M & HEROEHE BHAES T

%

Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e B+ 804,007,473 51.31

Century Hero International B BB R A A 2 582,421,337 37.17

Limited

Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding 3 118,353,600 7.55
Corporation Corporation

Convenhills Limited Convenhills Limited 4 128,510,486 8.20
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Notes:

1. These shares include 5,309,200 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 798,698,273 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

4. Convenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late
Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and
Mr. Leong Siew Khuen.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2016, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 216 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2016. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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PUBLIC FLOAT NEBRRE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and BIBEARAAGRARAETRENENRRESHA -
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual NARESRA AAFERE FHTHANESET AR
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under BHRE -

the Listing Rules.

Environmental policies RIBIREIR

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and AEESEERRFERERAFERER - KNEBEEGE
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources and the RERE  UNEBBETFZEEREREER&E
adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its BEE KAEBGBEHRERERBETERELADN B HiE
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages SEENRBERESH AEEHEDE TREBERER
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations B BIEETERR

and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to its
employees. Several measures have been implemented by the Group in
order to promote environmental protection, including, among others:

() promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch off (i) aﬁﬂ&;ﬁjj/aiﬁﬁ##“*Fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ BT E
all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office, and to URERERARGESI (R EERE
utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning systems;

(i)  reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light bulbs (i) BB ER NN EEFEEE BB D6
in the corridors and the reception area of its offices; TREE

u

(iliy promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for (i) FBBEITEIHZERBRWIBUEFEPEERA

collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and by REFMBRERERBEIYWA R REE®mITEI R S E
encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch papers; FAEERERERNA

(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example, (iv) WAOER—RMER  WEUBERAEIREBR
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and RN

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by (v) BBLTEBEKEERLBKE -

automatic faucets in offices.
Compliance with laws and regulations BFiERRZER
During the year ended 31st March 2016 and up to the date of this REBE_ZE—RXFZAZ+—HIEFEIEEAFR
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in NEH BEERETEHAEBEEEAXZENFTRHKR

the mainland China and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on FER B AT A BB EREER -
the Group.

Donations 1588

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations. FR - EELEELERESERN
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2015 were audited by CCIF
CPA Limited (“CCIF”) who retired as auditor of the Company and its
subsidiaries with effect from 16th September 2015.

On 16th September 2015, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe
Horwath”) was appointed as new auditor of the Company and its
subsidiaries to fill the casual vacancy following the retirement of CCIF
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2016 were
audited by Crowe Horwath. A resolution will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
Crowe Horwath as auditor of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th June 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2016 except for the deviation from the code provisions
A.4.1 and D.1.4 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as provided in the Bye-Laws. As the Company is bound by
the provision of the 1989 Act, at this time, the Bye-Laws cannot be
amended to fully reflect the requirements of the Code. As such, a
special resolution was passed at the special general meeting held on
28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of the Company so that, inter
alia, (i) every director (save for a director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) of the Company shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years; (ii) a director may be removed
by an ordinary resolution in general meeting instead of a special
resolution; and (iii) any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Eav Yin,
the Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting. The
Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive officer
is divided between the remaining executive directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less
exacting than those in the Code.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. Company should have formal letters
of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has not entered into any written letters of appointment
with its Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors
have already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to
directors of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to
act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions; and (iii) the current
arrangement has been adopted by the Company for several years and
has proven to be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the
Directors are able to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective
manner under the current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner. The Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices by emphasising a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all the shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 5 Board regular meetings
were held. Moreover, 3 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration
Committee meeting and 2 Nomination Committee meetings were
held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these
meetings was set out below:

ARFREEERBIIRTEERE FTRAIFS13
GEEBYSHTMEL 2 FERRER  HARAR
RFEBIHNTEEIEBIAL -

E=g e URTAKEZHBREBRR -
AEE BEEGRTLNERER - I AFECSE
T=ZRBEREREEEH —AFMEZEETIRMR
REZBEEEH %FCRSEF 2B HFELET
BT

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
EspE EEEER EREEEER FHEESEEE REZES8R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Eav Yin B EE 5/5 N/A 33 A 11 2/2
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 18R 98 ST A 3/3 N/A i N/A i A N/AT i A
(Note) (Hit)
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry HBRELE 4/5 N/AT i A N/A i N/A i A
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna B+ 3/3 N/A i N/AiE A N/AZE
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Lai Si Ming BERLAE 5/5 3/3 1/1 2/2
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TEIFZT 4/5 2/3 1/1 1/2
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEHLEE 5/5 3/3 11 2/2

Note:  Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson resigned as an Executive Director with

effect from 21st August 2015.

Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Eav
Ming Keong, Kinson (resigned), Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry and Ms.
Eav Guech Rosanna who are both Executive Directors of the Company.
Save as disclosed herein, there is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among members of the Board or
between the Chairman and the chief executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.

30| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

Wi BRBEEREHTEE B-F-AFN\A=-t+—H

AR -

ARREFBCRERGABEL (BRI - BAEE
ERGHERE (MEDR/EARRRTESR) 2 XH -
BAXEEEIN  EFGRE LMK HEETHA
BB EPTE - T REXEMERSABEE -

ERRITRAE

TERGCEE  MITREHEZDEERB T ZHRTE
=04 -

FHTESE
STRMEXAAMGRTE  SERITESRAREES I

HERERIE -

RAFE  ARARZFFRNTESTLE/IEEEH  BA
REARAZARBAEIE=FHERTI—ANRA
RERBFAG LEE Bt ARAR/THER
RERAERARR ZEEEARBRL AL T AIFAE
ERR -

jit o P S SR B A R 4N )



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors, appoint of new
executive director and make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2016, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,268,000 (2015: HK$1,566,000) and HK$329,000 (2015:
HK$371,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
36 to 37 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department, had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group including material controls over financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 16th September 2015, all
directors (except Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline) were present to
answer questions raised by shareholders and a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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PREIWS

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting out the Proposal; and (ii) a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including

address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 19/F, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below which had been attended during the year:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2.  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance

Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

&% EENER S

N\ Crowe Horwath.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 38 to 126, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st March 2016, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31st March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March 2015 were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 30th June 2015.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30th June 2016

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

nllT O E‘ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #HZE —Z—

NE=ZA=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-AKF T —h%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue EEL PN 5 834,394 718,580
Cost of sales S5 R AN (668,661) (570,552)
Gross profit EF 165,733 148,028
Valuation gains on investment properties ‘EMEZ HERE 262 40,481
Other revenue H Az 6 23,320 24,962
Distribution costs S AR R (203,543) (230,213)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (28,080) (28,834)
Other net gains H U = F 5 7 11,534 18,294
Finance costs B 75 PR AR 9(a) (4,851) (7,691)
Loss before taxation MRBATER 9 (35,625) (34,973)
Income tax FT8 %t 11 (53) (54)
Loss for the year AEEEFIE (35,678) (35,027)
Attributable to: SHER

Owners of the Company AATEFEEA (35,678) (30,936)
Non-controlling interests FEERBRRER - (4,091)
(35,678) (35,027)

Loss per share BRER 13
Basic (HK cents) EARCGEM) (2.28) (2.11)
Diluted (HK cents) s CB) (2.28) (2.11)

The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in Note 12.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moBaRHbEBNER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #HZE—-ZT— NF=-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the year KEEEFIE (35,678) (35,027)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) NEFEHMEEmBE (FE)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified BEES AW EN D EEBE AR
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of BMEEINEB AR REREE
financial statements of overseas ZERZBE(NMKREHE)
subsidiaries (net of nil tax) (3,287) (6,790)
Change in fair value reserve on EEAHBEEREZ
revaluation of available-for-sale RN EREES
investments (net of nil tax) (MBRZ=FE) (47) 190
Items that will not be reclassified BEBTSWEN S EEEEZHER ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
Gain on revaluation of properties upon REAEEYEZMESEHNE
transfer to investment properties 39,501 -
Deferred tax liability arising on gain on REMEEGRR ZELERFHAE
revaluation of properties (6,519) -
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) AEFEHMREEREE (BE)
for the year 29,648 (6,600)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEHZEER (6,030) (41,627)
Attributable to: BER:
Owners of the Company AATEEA (6,030) (37,536)
Non-controlling interests FEER IR R E R = (4,091)
(6,030) (41,627)
The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these financial statements. EBA5E R F 1268 2 Wi B I B 15 3k 2 BB 015 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIFIRIRR

As at 31st March 2016 RZZ—X"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—RE —hE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MBS RERE 14 23,107 15,250
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 15 17,576 19,866
Investment properties "EME 16 255,188 225,169
Available-for-sale investments ARHEZRE 18 7,670 7,717
Rental deposits and prepayments MEES KA KIE 24,320 21,554
327,861 289,556
Current assets RENEE
Inventories F& 19 317,690 372,167
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 15 479 505
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EAh IR K 20 24,779 38,475
Trading securities BHEEE 21 689 8,239
Pledged bank deposits 2 HEPIRITIF R 22 - 1,483
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEY 22 33,332 21,554
376,969 442,423
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E Al FE A BR R 23 154,347 172,011
Bank loans RITIEE 24 44,976 62,081
Loans from a director EE2ER 25 57,000 47,000
Provision for store closure B ERE 26 - -
Current income tax payable BNERFE B FT 15 /X 3,465 3,548
259,788 284,640
Net current assets REEEFR 117,181 157,783
Total assets less current liabilities WEERABER 445,042 447,339
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Rental deposits received and ERE ks HE
receipt in advance HehTEs 3,312 1,967
Deferred tax liabilities EBIETREAE 27 13,309 6,790
Other liabilities EmeE 28 22,646 27,346
39,267 36,103
Net assets EERE 405,775 411,236
Capital and reserves NS
Share capital & A 29 313,373 313,373
Reserves Gk 92,402 97,863
Equity attributable to owners of FEREAQATAFEEFA
the Company Z e 405,775 411,236
Approved and authorlsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2016 and S|gned on its behalf by:
AN_E-—RERNAZTHEEZLBRBAREENE  UHTIHIESFREE
Eav Yin Eav Guech Rosanna
Bz B
Director Director
o EF
The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these financial statements. E45B B F126 8 2 W eE B It B 75 3k 2 B B2 0 fH
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For the year ended 31st March 2016 #Z%E —Z—

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GLL'50p 20726 (10z'cth) 8267 88901 125l 186250 1081y LLE'19 04'spl SLE'CIE
- - 199 - (199) - - - - - -
695 695 = = 695 = = = = = =
(og0'9) (0g0'g) (8L9'ge) (25) = = = (282') 86'c¢ = =
879'62 879'62 = (z6) = = = (282'¢) 78626 = =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREMERER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #HZE—-ZT— R NF=-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
M FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES K
Loss before taxation Br T AT ES 1B (35,625) (34,973)
Adjustments for : Rk
Valuation gains on investment properties "EWMEZHEKS 16 (262) (40,481)
Net realised and unrealised gain HFHEBEERARRERZ
on trading securities W= F58 7 (6,261) (4,563)
Write-down of inventories, net FEZMOR - F5E 19 8,996 21,722
Write-back of long outstanding payables BERAKRERENRER
and accruals FEErER 7 - (2,962)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B SRR REEE 7 18 2,552
Revevsal of other tax payable H fth & 5 B 78 B ) Z = (34,467)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment H b JE W BR 5k K T A 5B
loss on other receivables CREEERE),
and prepayments B E1E 7 (1,709) 13,413
Bank interest income RITH B U A 6 (50) (57)
Interest expenses FEFAXZ 9a 4,851 7,691
Depreciation e 14 6,535 10,027
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments HETERIER H 15 487 506
Share-based payments expenses LARR 5 AR 2 (MR E X 569 (1,206)
Loss on write-off of rental deposits MR iR e RIEMRIE
and prepayments Z BB 252 5,046
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEMSE - KRR - (10)
and equipment B
Loss on write-off of property, plant WY - M KRR
and equipment ZEBE - 173
Decrease in provision for store closure IEEERERD 26 - (7,639)
Exchange differences EH Z5E 782 (210)
Changes in working capital LEESEY
Decrease in inventories FERD 38,557 70,557
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 I H fh & U BR FOR 453 11,376
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 & B & AR 3R
other payables G ) /% (4,341) 1,490
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities Hih & E O D) /180 (4,662) 7,460
Increase/(decrease) in rental deposits BB KRz HEZS
received and receipt in advance KESEM CRd) 1,345 (75)
CASH GENERATED FROM EENEEZHES
OPERATIONS 9,935 25,370
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B cHBRDEMER (53) (1)
PRC Corporate Income Tax refunded ER[E Z B EFTSH - 21
NET CASH GENERATED EENKEEL 2
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEEE 9,882 25,370
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Payment for purchase of property, TRNRBEWE  MEBRZE
plant and equipment (5,022) (6,781)
Sale proceeds of disposal of property, HEME KB REE
plant and equipment Z TS HERIA - 10
Payment for purchase of trading securities TRNBEZEEES (1,982) -
Sale proceeds of disposal of trading securities 1 & & & E 513 508 15,793 -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRARITF RS 1,483 1,820
Bank interest income received B R 1T LB A 50 57
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ EER/ (BHAR)BRE£HK2
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFE 10,322 (4,894)

WE bR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GREMERER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #HE—-ZT— NF=-A=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-XE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & E
Net proceeds from issuance BT RS F 508
of new shares - 49,700
Proceeds from new bank loans MIRTTIBEMSRIA 50,971 61,204
Repayment of bank loans EERITEE (67,076) (134,587)
Interest paid on bank loans RITEELHZFE (1,914) (5,006)
Payment for acquisition of additional AU B — R BB A R EE AN
interests in a subsidiary R 38 - 2,111)
Proceeds from other borrowings H{EEREIE 10,000 —
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMES (10,000) —
Interest paid on other borrowings HMEER S (56) -
Proceeds from loans from a director REEZERFEHRE 25 25,000 13,000
Repayment of loans from a director BEEESZER 25 (15,000) (18,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING EARMETE 2
ACTIVITIES BeFE (8,075) (35,800)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND HE&RESZEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS S GRd) FEE 12,129 (15,324)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FARERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 21,554 36,879
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXgB o8 FH
CHANGES, NET (351) A)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRESTHELEEY
END OF THE YEAR 33,332 21,554
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRBEBSEEYERD N
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFERS 22 33,332 21,554
The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these financial statements. FASE T FE1268 T AL I FS R 2 BAEID -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading of watches (retail and wholesale) and property
leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and 19th
Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong respectively. As at
31st March 2016, the directors of the Company consider that
the immediate and ultimate holding company is Century Hero
International Limited (“Century Hero”), a company which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling
party of Century Hero is Mr. Eav Yin, the director of the Company.
Century Hero does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30th June 2016.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$35,678,000 (2015: HK$30,936,000) and had decrease in net
current assets of HK$40,602,000 (2015: HK$15,281,000) and net
debt of HK$68,644,000 (2015: HK$86,044,000) as stated in Note
32 to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2016.
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the impact of
the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the
ability of the Group to attain profit and positive cash flows from
operations in the immediate and longer term.

R §5 ER R B 5F

—iRSBA

BEBHEEEARAR (AR R HERER
Bnm - EMBAR BN EERES (TE R
BIARERE -

Apralp— BEEBRETMRIZRNDER
AAEl EROREBHERXZFER QA ([H
RN EM - ARFRIZEMPEEREE &2
1 %4 Bl ACanon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda ) & /& 2 & 38 7595719
B-RZZE—XFZA=+—"80 ARFEER
BEERRREBRARAEHEREER AR ([t
HD(—HAREBRELZHESFEMKIZAR) o
BHSEESATAARRESHC AL -
WEFREER M B HRRHEAREH -

BIERINHEA  BRAAFBRRIATET (T
B 25 - AFBHRERECR T —RNFARHA
=TEHEESHARM -

BIHERTIABTEY - BLTHEARA
s

NEBEEEKRRNFFE AEGEESS,678,000%
T (=Z—FH 4 30,936,000/ ) : KD REE
B %{840,602,0008 7T (—ZF— F4F : 15,281,000
Bor) - MEF5E68,644,0008 L (Z T — A
F : 86,044,000/ L) A =T —A"F=ZA=+—
B4R A B IR M sEs20Ti - ERFZEHRAH
BMEKR  ARREECEEEEENMESN
RRREBEHAEENTE  URANEBETHEH
MEENEST  BERAMNMEMBRSRNEES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

2. GOING CONCERN (Continued)

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the Group has taken the following measures:

. On 25th June 2014, the Group entered into a term loan
facility agreement for HK$150 million with Mr. Eav Yin, a
director and controlling shareholder of the Company for a
period from 25th June 2014 to 30th September 2015. The
Group renewed the term loan facility agreement with Mr.
Eav on 26th June 2015 for another year to 30th September
2016 with facility amount of HK$80 million. The total amount
utilized under the term loan facility agreement as at 31st
March 2016 was HK$57 million. The Group renewed the term
loan facility agreement with Mr. Eav on 27th June 2016 for
another year to 30th September 2017 with facility amount of
HK$60 million.

. the directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations; and

o the directors of the Company have reviewed the performance
of individual stores to close non-profitable stores if
appropriate.

Based on the cash flow projections of the Group and having taken
into account the available financial resources of the Group and
the above measures, the directors have concluded that the Group
is able to continue as a going concern and to meet their financial
liabilities as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 4 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 3(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or
as trading securities (see note 3(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 37.

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. FESIR

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

(c)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interest
in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposed group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the measurement
period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. XESFECR (8)

(d)

ERB (8])

HEREBEXBEHPERORERER
ARBLHEMELENEEXBE - BIHAK
BREEWBHYO A LEFE  TBER
EBAThEERNTORE - FATEHRE
HEHGFNARBAANEED S EPH
B WHAEAERE GENHBBEEE
stE MM (U B s R A | — ) Fir
ERHERKERRFEENEENRTERORN
EEMAI M FE -

WEXARERIABNREZSH NTEITE
HIR ARG - RIERB ST RIEAR T
HRREMADEBME - HESERNHIA
REERERSAPITSENTE  MAR
BREGAERTAR BEREEXEE
MRAREBEEREREAMIRRELEGS
HERIE3F [ MIA : WRMG & | FHat
B ARBREEETER -

MREB A RDOBEBRETE - BIERKE
HH(AIAEEESEHEZA)OALE
Bt EASBE LA ERKE T P REMNE
m o BAEERNER (1) BT AB& - BRI
BB R EAT - AT B At 2 YR T R SR O R
WHREBEBHOERMELNSRE  EEHHA
E8m - MHERS  ENORERER
BEFENE -

HRMEMREREB S HERBE S HFNT
HARMARTER - BIARREARSE HARARR
MIBEMEESRE ZFYUEFREARE
B (R LX) A% - RAERBEINEESR
BfE - URBFTEVS A R UE R B3 ER
EZEMRANFMER (E) BZACHERE

BOEE -

Annual Report 2016 |51



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 3(r).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 3(i)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 3(i)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 3(r). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
Note 3(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESHBE(E8)
(f) Investment properties f) EME

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 3(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 3(r).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
Note 3(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in Note 3(h).

The investment property is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at fair value when there is change in use
evidenced by commencement of own-occupation.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

3(1):

- land classified as being held under finance lease and
buildings thereon;

- other items of property, plant and equipment.

If an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

AR

BREWMETIEA K ATHE R (R FE3(h)
FREERKRESBAR, HEARFEL L
&, BT o L BIFBRE R EEE 15 2R
Rz LA RIEABES B RKERIER
REMERZOWE -

BREMERAAERY)  BRIFERBERR
DERERFZERED  REAREZEHN
BER SEHET B o EE QR EE S A MmE
SHERBREMEREE 2 WEREIRY
RIBR AR - REMENE S WARME
3( P A B ©

HAEE AR SHERGMERD ARIUE
SRARREREE  FEERSIREEY
EEEIRRREME - BERREMEZ
EAMEER 2 ARSI AENBERE (R
BIEE3(h)) ® A 2 mARR - BEERZ g5
BERGENBEREREZ LR EMER
[ o 72 & IR FE3() R FT LT A

EEERARRNESERE  KEMEUR
REEREYME  BERRE-

LZER )

THYIEE - HER MERE 2 TE B TR ANER
RN TERBESERTBERRAEXFT 25
(R FMIFES()) -

- THOBAREHERANREEY:

- HibWE HERREEE -

AR ERRREL (DT BhEE
)5 AREME  AI%ERKEAESR
REREMZ AR B2 EER 2 E s
BB EGHETRR  REEREER S
SR ABEGEEEEYRERY
R o

Annual Report 2016 |53



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

(9)

(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plans and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see Note 3(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in Note 3(i). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

The Group leases retail stores and office facilities.
Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum rentals
or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of
stated amounts and normally require the Group to
pay insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent
expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis
over the base term of the lease. Any difference between
the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Contingent
rental payments are expensed as incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease and is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position, is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 3(f)).

() Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TESIKE (@)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) &EiEE(E)

BB RRAEH IR E KA MWK

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities (i)

and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments;

- rental deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Note 3(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of unquoted equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

U]

(m)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note

3(7))-

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 3(q)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a components of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

(o) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. XESFECR (8)

(0)

(p)

[ESEM (4)
(i) URGBEHEZ(F(E)

REBHA - B AHREZEBR
BEE  -HBTFERBNRTAA
EMBEZ BB BN R FED
XRABREA HEZREESERE
BEFERR  ETHREERXSE
RREBEETHERRI - ERER - R
RAXBZBBABELHE  ARKRE
BOERBERESE (HEZAZKR
BREHERR) ERBEARRFZ
P& 17 T 1B Bk 55 188 15 L K a3 B i 3
BRI o e RN BRI EN
R BEERBRERITE (EILERT
BEERMEERN) LBRERR (£
UIER T ERBERE EFA)

(i) ARLEFEFY

RIEBANAR A EB TS BREEHEREMH]
ZEEN > RALERR S R EIE
Bz EEZ AR (URFHABE)
R -

PR iS it

SR IsE BEM BB REEREHIE
@A o

EHERNRADRAFEERVGMNFTE -
B REEMFEE BRI A B AU A K
S HIB B ARKARBERIBAIAR - ER
Bos N B A BERAE2H 2 [HADEN T
[l - REEE 2 AH|FAEHREERAHRSEH
ABEERMAEERMZBHERAH -

Annual Report 2016 |63



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. For the purposes of measuring
deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Current and deferred tax
are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged. had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 3(q)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

U]

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(iii)  Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follow:

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods and related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deducting of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

U]

(u)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company, the Group’s most senior executive
management, for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements.

- Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits: Defined benefit
plans: Employee contributions

- Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle

- Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit
plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the complexity
of accounting for certain contributions from employees or third
parties under defined benefit plans. When the contributions are
eligible for the practical expedient provided by the amendments, a
company is allowed to recognise the contributions as a reduction
of the service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered, instead of including them in calculating the defined
benefit obligation. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Group only operated the defined
contribution plans for its employees.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-
2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain amendments
to nine standards with consequential amendments to other
standards. Among them, HKAS 24, Related party disclosures
has been amended to expand the definition of a “related party”
to include a management entity that provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, and to require
the disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining the key
management personnel services provided by the management
entity. These amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from management entities.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are trading of watches (retail

and wholesale) and property leasing.

Revenue represents (i) the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches, less the value added tax,
other sales taxes and trade discounts and (ii) rental income from

property leasing.

5. EXWA

R §5 ER R B 5F

AEEZIZXBABERES (TERBB)UL
MEME -

BEWARNEREE 2B W R ER Z #R0E
HRIEER - HbHEERRESHTH - UL RHY
ZHEHSWA -

2016 2015
=E—KRF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of watches ERIHE 827,100 713,854
Rental income from investment properties REREWEZHE WA 7,294 4,726
834,394 718,580

OTHER REVENUE 6. Hfthlyzs
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—FRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITHF B YA 50 57

Total interest income on financial assets FBEBRERRARBERENS R

not at fair value through profit or loss BEMEENNSRA BT 50 57
Gross rental income from sub-letting of a shop > — R /E&HH & A 4258 - 623
Promotion income e B A 7,386 8,854
Advertising income EEWA 5,962 2,310
Customer services income and others BERRE KA REMm 9,922 13,118
23,320 24,962
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OTHER NET GAINS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

2016 2015
—REF —T—ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Net realised and unrealised gain BHEEERR
on trading securities REIH Z Wz /#*%E 6,261 4,563
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME - s
equipment H B - 10
Store closure costs JEH A ER AR (i) (252) (8,363)
Impairment loss on trade receivables = %fﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\i)ﬁiﬁféﬂé (18) (2,552)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) b, JE R 51 & TR R
on other receivables and prepayments REEBERE( Aﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁi) (i) 1,709 (13,413)
Write-back of long outstanding REIREEEMNER
payables and accruals RETEARE - 2,962
Reversal of other tax payable H th fE S BETE B ) (iif) - 34,467
Others Hith 3,834 620
11,534 18,294
Notes: W -
(i) Store closure costs (i) TR AR
The store closure costs for the year ended 31st March 2016 REE - RNE-A=-+—HIEEEHEEER
comprised a loss on write off of rental deposits of HK$252,000 for R FE AR AT F ST S 85T £ 12 4 252,000
early termination of operating leases. T o
The store closure costs for the year ended 31st March 2015 REBE-—T—RAFE=-A=+—HIEEEHEEL

(i)

comprised compensations paid to landlords of HK$2,888,000, other
expenses for store closure of HK$256,000, losses on write off of
leasehold improvements and equipment of HK$173,000 and write off
of rental deposits of HK$5,046,000 for early termination of operating
leases.

Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) on other receivables
and prepayments.

Reversal of impairment loss on other receivables and prepayments
for the year ended 31st March 2016 mainly represented the amounts
recovered from the other receivables.

The impairment loss on other receivables and prepayments for the
year ended 31st March 2015 mainly represented the payments for
purchases made to a supplier became irrecoverable and the carrying
amount of the rental prepayment exceeds its recoverable amount.
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7.

x

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER NET GAINS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(iii)  Reversal of other tax payable

In 2015, the directors of the Company are of the view that the value-
added tax payable of approximately RMB27,549,000 (approximately
HK$34,467,000) provided in the previous years is no longer payable
and the said sum is written back in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 31st March 2015. In considering
the outstanding value-added tax payable to be no longer payable,
the directors of the Company have taken into account the facts and
circumstances, among others, that the approval from the Shanghai
Huangpu State Tax Bureau for the tax deregistration of the relevant
subsidiary and the expiry of the relevant subsidiary’s business
registration with the Shanghai Administration for Industry and
Commerce.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sale of watches (retail and
wholesale) and (ii) properties leasing. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note to
the financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the
profit earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of
central administration costs and corporate costs which cannot be
meaningfully allocated to individual segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortization of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and other corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. LB (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets LXT?%@EE AREBREDE 7 &I - ¥
and liabilities by operating segment. CEBENRBEZON
2016
—-NE
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total  Unallocated Total
HEEHHE HENE W@ AELE @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
External revenue (Note) Nk (4752) 827,100 7,294 834,394 - 834,394
Operating profit/(loss) mEER/ (BB) (40,202) 5,178 (35,024) (7,596) (42,620)
Valuation gains on investment REME 2 HENE
properties - 262 262 - 262
Interest income FIEHA 50 - 50 - 50
Other net gains Hiiam 38 5,273 - 5,273 6,261 11,534
Finance costs EJT BRA (4,851) - (4,851) - (4,851)
Segment results DEEE (39,730) 5,440 (34,290) (1,335) (35,625)
Income tax FriEH (53)
Loss for the year AEERE (35,678)
Loss on write off of rental deposits £ &4 i ilE 2 (252) - (252) - (252)
Write-down of inventories WAREE (8,996) - (8,996) - (8,996)
Impairment loss of trade receivables & 5 BN R FUREE & (18) - (18) - (18)
Reversal of impairment loss of H fth FE WOBR 3R &
other receivables and prepayments B FIEREE B[ 1,709 - 1,709 - 1,709
Net realised and unrealised gain EHEBEERR
on trading securities AER 2= FE - - - 6,261 6,261
Depreciation and amortisation WE KRB (6,711) (311) (7,022) - (7,022)
Segment assets NEEE 433,489 256,439 689,928 7,232 697,160
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZEE 7,670
Total assets BEE 704,830
Additions to non-current segment AREHRERHH
assets during the reporting period EEZEM 7,878 16 7,894 - 7,894
Segment liabilities KHaE 270,004 8,894 278,898 3,383 282,281
Current income tax payable ENEAFE i TS 20 3,465
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEER 13,309
Total liabilities LaE 299,055
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Wit P22 NFZA=T—HILFEHBEITE

2016.

74| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

DEBEIHE -

F‘H:\l N

=
e
i



8.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ER 2R Bf 51
SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. LB ()
2015
—Z-0%¥
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HERHE HEWE 2 A ARDE @it
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
External revenue (Note) oM (=) 713,854 4,726 718,580 - 718,580
Operating profit/(loss) mEEA/ (B8) (82,463) 3,864 (78,599) (7,515) (86,114)
Valuation gains on investment REME 2 hEKE
properties - 40,481 40,481 - 40,481
Interest income RN ON 56 - 56 1 57
Other net gains Hiplh 38 13,444 79 13,523 4,771 18,294
Finance costs B R (7,691) - (7,691) - (7,691)
Segment results BULE (76,654) 44,424 (32,230) (2,743) (34,973)
Income tax PR (54)
Loss for the year AEEEE (35,027)
Loss on write off of property, MmE - BB REEHEEE
plant and equipment (173) - (173) - (173)
Loss on write off of rental deposits &4 MEER (5,046) - (5,046) - (5,046)
Write-down of inventories WHEE (21,722) - (21,722) - (21,722)
Write-back of long-outstanding REREERTERERL
payables and accruals B ERER 2,684 79 2,763 199 2,962
Impairment loss of trade receivables & 5 ENEFUREEE (2,552) - (2,552) - (2,552)
Impairment loss of other Hith e R F K
receivables and prepayments BRFEREEE (13,413) - (13,413) - (13,413)
Reversal of other tax payable HitERHERD 34,467 - 34,467 = 34,467
Net realised and unrealised gain EHEEERR
on trading securities REBZWEFE - - - 4,563 4,563
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (10,336) (197) (10,533) - (10,533)
Segment assets NHEE 479,304 227,754 707,058 17,204 724,262
Available-for-sale investments AHRHEZRE 7,717
Total assets BEE 731,979
Additions to non-current segment AREHRERDH
assets during the reporting period BEZEN 7,299 230 7,529 33 7,562
Segment liabilities NEEE 298,960 7,872 306,832 3,573 310,405
Current income tax payable ENEAE 4 P15 20 3,548
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEER 6,790
Total liabilities BafE 320,743

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March

2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

8.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments,
investment properties and rental deposits and prepayments.
The geographical location of customers is referred to the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical locations of non-current assets
are based on the physical location of the assets.

8. RNIBHKS ()

(a)

mEmEEN

N TAOAEERBINDE P 2 W i)
EEMZME - MEREE HEEMARE -
BEMENAEEZRS NENREZ HENE
A REEEMELZEGRUERBEIEY
Bk 2B o R ZIERBEERERN
BEZERIIHEEE -

Revenues from

external customers

Non-current assets

REMBEFZWE ERBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
=B-A"E —T-HF ZTB-R"E ZT—HHF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
The People’s Republic of FEARKEFE -

China, excluding Hong Kong BERBRIN 376,219 343,113 65,234 59,129
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (REH) 456,700 374,488 241,597 208,912
Switzerland Imt 1,475 979 13,360 13,798

834,394 718,580 320,191 281,839
Information about major customers (b) EAREFEEFEN

For the year ended 31st March 2016, revenue of
approximately HK$160,242,000 was derived from a single
external customer who contributed more than 10% of total
revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable to the
sales of watches segment.

For the year ended 31st March 2015, no revenue derived
from transactions with a single customer represented 10% or
more of the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. MR

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Al 18

BERABES NG, GtA) U TRE:

(a) Finance costs (a) Bl FERY AR
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIE T B 1,754 4,903
Interest on other borrowings H {8 A A 56 -
Interest on loans from a director BEE2ERAE 3,041 2,788
Total interest expenses on financial FBEBBRIBARERENT R
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENTEX LB
profit or loss 4,851 7,691
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRK
2016 2015
—B-RE —E-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHEMET

(including directors’ fee and emoluments) (BIEEEHE L) 45,931 50,907
Equity settled share-based RREEE ARMD AR

payment expenses 3 569 (1,206)
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RARE M FT SRR 4,455 4,959

50,955 54,660
(c) Other items (c) EHfthaB
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment KREMERKHESNBRERZSZ N

properties less direct outgoings of 342,000 T (=T —H5F -

HK$342,000 (2015: HK$252,000) 252,000/ 77.) (6,952) (4,474)
Net exchange loss JE N 18 F 5 496 1,057
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B A B

Audit services ZE RS 1,268 1,566

Other services H At B 75 329 371
Depreciation for property, Y B RREITE

plant and equipment 6,535 10,027
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 E 78 R IEHE 487 506
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S REBERRERSE 18 2,552
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment b B AR SR R TR RIE

loss on other receivables CREEBERER)

and prepayments A E R (1,709) 13,413
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEzKEHERS

rented premises

— Minimum rentals —HEHe 126,827 135,619

- Contingent rentals -k AR 2,031 1,813

128,858 137,432
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses MERAR % 2 F &M A 668,661 570,552

AL 2 B 4 T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMERESHEAL
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) E=SHe
The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31st REE-—E—FER-_E—AE=A=—+—
March 2016 and 2015 are set out below: AlLEEEHEEyHesinT
T 2 :
2016
ZE-RE
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances to retirement Equity-settled
Directors’ Basic  and other benefit share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
RRELES
2ER BAEA NRAARER
Ezfis 9.8 7 AftER EEEHEE N PAES @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE7 FEr -7 FEr FEr FEr FEr

Executive Directors HiEs
Eav Yin B 238 4,175 1,041 - 5,454 105 5,559
Eav Guech Rosanna BB (R_5-1F
(appointed on 21st August 2015) NAZ + EI f£) - 515 2 - 517 - 517
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson BRR(R-Z-1%F
(resigned on 21st August 2015) NRZT—REf) 92 875 447 8 1,422 30 1,452
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
330 5,565 1,490 8 7,393 135 7,528
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYEHTEE
Lai Si Ming ERH 238 - - - 238 13 251
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline IR 238 - - - 238 13 251
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEE 238 - - - 238 13 251
714 - - - 14 39 753
1,044 5,565 1,490 8 8,107 174 8,281

78| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 70 o SR AR EI A TR A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

U]

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

() SBHE (8

2015
e
Employer's
contribution
Allowances  to retirement Equity-settled
Directors’ Basic and other benefit share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
BRERE
2ER RIKER DR RER
vk EXFe EfpiEdl sFEEZHR N VALY a5t
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT FET TET & FET
Executive Directors HrEs
Eav Yin BE 238 4175 1,053 - 5,466 234 5,700
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson oLk 238 2,099 647 17 3,001 176 3177
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier
(resigned on 31st July 2014) (R=Z-RmF
tA=+-REf) - 495 - 5 500 (2,493) (1,993)
476 6,769 1,700 22 8,967 (2,083) 6,884
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - 238 29 267
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TER 238 - - - 238 29 267
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEH 238 - - - 238 2 267
714 - - - 714 87 801
1,190 6,769 1,700 22 9,681 (1,996) 7,685

Notes: B

(1)  There was no arrangement under which a director waived or (1) RZZBE—RFRZZF—R"F=ZA=+—8H1
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st FEHME  WEEEREXR = PEET A
March 2016 and 2015. 2R

(2) No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as 2 REEZ—REE-_ZT—RE=-ZA=1+—
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as ABlt2FE  AEETEINTFTEREAR
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March SIEMAKRIMARE B % - SKEABERME
2016 and 2015. Bz -

(3) As at 31st March 2016, the directors held share options under B RIZ-—XRE=ZRA=+—RH FFREQA
company’s share option scheme. The details of the share BT AR - BIREEENES
options are disclosed under the paragraph “share option RE 2 [BEARHE 2 5T 28] | B M 5E30(a)F 1%
scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 30(a). "o

(4) The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role 4) ARRTEZETHRAHZEERTRAHNAR
and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the KD R ITERET
executive directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESHERESME AT (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Individuals with highest emoluments (i) E=MEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hfuGEeHALH MU (ZZE—HF: =
(2015: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed fi7) BE 2B &AM FE106) 5% 5 - Ea =1L
in Note 10(j). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of (ZZ—R%F: =) ATFER e @FEN
the other three (2015: three) individuals is as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-AKF —ZT—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Basic salaries, allowances and other EARHS R REMBEF
emoluments 3,788 3,921
Performance related incentive payments KA WERIE 8 3
Employer’s contribution to retirement R RAE 5 EME F 4R
benefit scheme 46 46
Equity-settled share-based payment expense RIREGEE RGN BER 2 3K 100 116
3,942 4,086
The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three senior BT (ZE—AF  ZUafhERE) &K
management) individuals with the highest emoluments are SMEALN T TIEHE -

within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AH
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% 7t - 1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T — 2,000,000/% 7T 1 1
3 3
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Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11. B EERNZRETH
OR LOSS
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—ARF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax BVHAR 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax Bl EFTIS
— Charge for the year —RNEEMRBH 53 21
- Tax refund —FriS TR K = (21)
53 -
Deferred tax EER IR
Origination of temporary differences ERUEZRE 7 EERED - 54
53 54

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been provided for the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015
as the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong.

Taxation for the PRC subsidiaries is provided at the rate of 25%
(2015: 25%).

The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax
at the rate of 17% (2015: 17%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has
been provided for the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015 as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

EEMBRRNTENSHER16.5%(—F—H
F:16.5%)  c HRAEERBE_T-—AFER_
E-REZA=+-HLEZFELERFBMFIE
AT - W ERE BN S BAE L EE -

FEMEBAG ZFHEAE25% (—ZE—FF  25%)
E S -

RintzMBRARREASEHER/TH(ZE—h
F17%) REBEZE-Z-AFR-_FT-RF=
A=Z+—BL%E ARAEEL 8K+ 2 EM
EHERBUAN - BORBE R TSRS -

REARENEBREAHSEIRE  ARBEHE
BUEREEERTRIEAMASHES

Annual Report 2016 |81



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11. GGBIBEEXAZPRETH (48)
OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at MIERYHeBERIRERABRERAE 2 HEE -
applicable tax rates:

2016 2015
—E-XF —T—ARF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before taxation b B A &5 1B (35,625) (34,973)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, RAEERMEBESENER
calculated at the tax rates applicable to MESTHEORBIAIEE
losses in the countries concerned Z I8 (5,350) (6,528)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FERLAES E T REHIR 2 S 2 Bl 7% 52 28 4,598 15,488
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERFEEATERB WA ZTHBLE (7,547) (22,488)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERZMIBER MG E 8,192 14,560
Tax effect of temporary REERCERER
difference not recognised 2R 160 (58)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences B 1E & ¥ F 19 7] H157 & A
previously not recognised ER BT E = (742)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses FRASERACHBEEZBBTE - (157)
Tax refund FrigBiiR R = (21)
Actual tax expenses ERBES S 53 54
12. DIVIDENDS 12. 2
The directors do not propose any payment of final dividend for the EETRRAREHE-_T—AFRITE—ARF=
years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015. A=+—RIEFEZERRPRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$35,678,000
(2015: HK$30,936,000) and the weighted average number of
1,566,866,000 ordinary shares (2015: 1,462,757,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

13. BREEA

(a)

BREBKRGEA

BREABEDEAQNBFEEARGEIE
35,678,000/ 7T (= Z — F 4 : 30,936,000
BIT) - AR AN E 1T 21,566,866,000
BREBRNMEFHHE (ZE—RHF
1,462,757,00008 L @A) st E T -

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —T—FEF
’000 000
] R
Issued ordinary shares at 1st April RUA—BET2E@ER 1,566,866 1,366,866
Effect of issue on shares pursuant to BIER MRS M EITRMONFE
share placement - 95,891
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+— 3
shares at 31st March IHEF AR & 1,566,866 1,462,757
Diluted loss per share (b) EREMSBHEIE
Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share for REBE-"ST—HER —NE=fA=+—
the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015. BILEE i%,ﬁgﬁg,@gﬂg HERGIREANE
B
The share option had no dilutive effect because the average ERETESEEE  AAHLEKR Y TYH
market price of ordinary shares did not exceed the exercise MEERITBARE T —FRER T —X
price of the share option for the years ended 31st March FEZA=+—HIFEZERETEE -
2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. A% - 1RSSR R

Furniture, Leasehold  Machinery
Land and fixtures and improve- and Motor
buildings fittings ments  equipment vehicles Total
BE-RE  HENE BER
THRER REE 303 B "E ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET T FEx FET FEx
At Tst April 2014 N-E-mEMA-A
Cost AR 10,806 3,446 64,652 27,627 2,885 109,416
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (3,042) (3,321) (57,716) (23,283) (2,829) (90,191)
Carrying amount ERFE 7,764 125 6,936 4,344 56 19,225
Year ended 31st March 2015 “E-REZRZt-RALERE
Opening carrying amount BNEEFE 7,764 125 6,936 4,344 56 19,225
Translation differences BhEZEE (386) - 11 (181) - (556)
Additions NE - 55 6,134 592 - 6,781
Write-off i - (16) (39) (118) - (173)
Depreciation charge REXH @77) (57) (7,187) (2,450) (56) (10,027)
Closing carrying amount BRRE#E 7,101 107 5,855 2,187 - 15,250
At 31st March 2015 RZE-AF=A=1-H
Cost A (E 10,261 3,265 46,960 23,338 2,578 86,402
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (3,160) (3,158) (41,105) (21,151) (2,578) (71,152)
Carrying amount REFE 7,101 107 5,855 2,187 - 15,250
Year ended 31st March 2016 “E-RNEZR=t-ALERE
Opening carrying amount BOEmEE 7,101 107 5,855 2,187 A 15,250
Translation differences BEET (83) - (115) 22) - (220)
Additions NE - 7 4,687 328 - 5,022
Transfer from investment properties E& & RENE 12,500 - - - - 12,500
Transfer to investment properties B A& E#% (2,910) - - - - (2,910)
Depreciation charge FEX M (324) (40) (4,924) (1,247) - (6,535)
Closing carrying amount HRRE#E 16,284 74 5,503 1,246 - 23,107
At 31st March 2016 RZE-"E=A=1-H
Cost RAE 18,638 3,270 47,414 23,212 2,578 95,112
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (2,354) (3,196  (1,011)  (21,966) (2,578)  (72,005)
Carrying amount EEFE 16,284 74 5,503 1,246 - 23,107
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R §5 ER R B 5F

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. ¥ - KB he21E (48)

Notes: Bt -

(@) Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- (@) W% EREEBENESEIZTIFEEXRFHE
line basis at the following rates per annum: WE -

Freehold land is not depreciated KA L TFHRITE

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms AELH 2% SIETHA B T F 5
of the leases, if shorter (ABE & BE)

Buildings 2 - 4% or over the remaining gF 2 - A%SIETAB T
lease period, if shorter FH(UAREE BE)

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15 - 20% RE - REREE 15-20%

Leasehold improvements 5-50% or over the remaining HEWERE 5-50%ILEH AT
lease period, if shorter FH (AR EEHE AB%E)

Machinery and equipment 20 -50% W28 R % 20 - 50%

Motor vehicles 20% Y 20%

(b) At 31st March 2016, land and buildings of HK$14,435,000 (b)) RZZT—RE=ZHA=+—H " 14,435,000/
(2015: HK$642,000) were pledged as securities for bank T2 L EREF (ZF— AT 642,000/8
loans as detailed in Note 24. TL) BAERBITER 2ER - SFERHNW T

24 o
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. THE&TaIFRIE
2016 2015
—B—XF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

At 1st April RMA—H 20,371 20,871

Transfer to investment properties BAKREME (1,062) -

Translation difference BmE=%E (767) 6

Amortisation BESH (487) (506)

At 31st March KR=A=+—H 18,055 20,371

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Analysis for reporting purposes as: HRIBEEHZ
Current portion mENE S 479 505
Non-current portion SER BN EB 17,576 19,866
18,055 20,371
At 31st March 2016, certain prepaid lease payments of R-_E—-XNE=Z/F=+—H HTEHE

HK$18,055,000 (2015: HK$519,000) were pledged as securities for
bank loans as detailed in Note 24.

18,055,000 7T (ZF —h% : 519,000/ 7T ) #4978
BERMFRERITERER - FHEENHF24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REME

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
At valuation HESE

At the beginning of the year REH] 225,169 185,529
Translation difference BmE=E (1,216) (841)

Transfer from prepaid lease payments and ERAHERNRE
property, plant and equipment R - #es kB 43,473 -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EAYE KB RRME (12,500) -
Fair value gains A ERE 262 40,481
At the end of the year RER 255,188 225,169

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group transferred
certain of its property interests with historical carrying values
before transfer of HK$2,910,000 from property, plant and
equipment and HK$1,062,000 from prepaid lease payments
to investment properties. The resulting revaluation surplus of
HK$39,501,000 relating to such property interests as at the
date of transfer had been credited to the revaluation reserve.
The Group also transferred certain of its property interests with
fair value before transfer of HK$12,500,000 from investment
properties to property, plant and equipment.

The fair values of the above properties at the dates of change
of the use were valued by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited
and DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not related to the Group. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in the same locations and conditions at
respective dates.

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. 1B EME (@)
Note: rat -
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (a) BREMENARAEHS
()  Fair value hierarchy () A2 EER

The following table presents the fair value of the T%£§|J$E@EA11 s BRIRIE®
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of Fﬁ.ﬁiﬂ’ﬂxé%i&“f o FEY
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised %EE ABEBRBHRE J>>%13%Fr
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined Qﬁ@ﬁrgﬁﬁﬁmﬂ’] BARERE
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level o REB2RATEAETEMFEBK
into which a fair value measurement is classified BABNIBREEMES T - tmME
is determined with reference to the observability EARBHEHEMESZENER

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only o FHMHEE: AAEERFER
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in FE—REE Eﬂﬁ"ﬁgﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁ
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at AEENBBERNERTS 2RE
the measurement date. REIRE -

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using e FIHRME: A AREHEFERSE
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which ZREE - A EBIREIE R E
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant BE—F  RIKFEHAERTA
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BR7HE TABRZEER
inputs for which market data are not available. Hiig 8B T #E A 2 808 -

e  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using e FRMHBE: R ABEAEHFEHAE
significant unobservable inputs. AINAI R 2 8k -

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2016 categorised into
RZE-—XE=ZHA=+—-HZ

AREFEDE
Fair value
at
31st March
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZTB—XRE
=A=+-H
ZARE F1ER HE2E & ER) =R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEMAARE
measurement =
Investment properties: & ¥ :
- Hong Kong —BE 207,800 - - 207,800
- Mainland China — R B K RE 36,679 - - 36,679
- Switzerland —Imt 10,709 - - 10,709
255,188 - - 255,188
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S ERRBAE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(@)

16. IR&ME (1§)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARBS (6B)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () 2AEERE)
Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2015 categorised into
RZEBE—RAF=A=+—8H2
AREFESHE
Fair value
at
31st March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZE—RF
—RA=+—H
/NN FIBR F2ER F3ER
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FHET
Recurring fair value &EMAAE
measurement TE
Investment properties: &E&EWE :
- Hong Kong —BB 178,900 - - 178,900
- Mainland China — B K e 37,846 - - 37,846
— Switzerland —Imt 8,423 - - 8,423
225,169 - - 225,169

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2016 and 2015. The valuations of
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
PRC as at 31st March 2016 and 2015 were carried
out by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Limited and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, respectively, the firms
of independent professional qualified valuers in Hong
Kong and the PRC with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued.
The valuations of investment properties located in
Switzerland as at 31st March 2016 and 2015 were
carried out by Pierre Berest S.A., a firm of independent
professional qualified valuers in Switzerland with
recent experience in the location and category of
properties being valued. The Group’s finance manager
and the chief financial officer have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. 2B (8)

REMENARESE (R)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(i) E=ZFRAAEHEEH

Relationship of

Range or unobservable

Valuation Key weighted inputs to

techniques unobservable inputs average fair value

BN DMREFT

fRERM TEFABREZEE gL BEyEBRR

Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (15)%-4% The higher

located in the PRC approach to transaction price (2015: (14)%-12%) the adjusted
RHBEZIREYE 5 L BUA (to reflect location (ZZ—A%F: transaction price,
age and maintenance) (14)%-12% ) the higher the

w8/ (i) X5 ER fair value

(ARt BRRRE) HEERDRS

Investment properties Market comparison

Premium/(discount) (27)%-10%

ARERS

The higher

located in Hong Kong approach to transaction price (2015: (7)%-25%) the adjusted
MURBEBZREME 5B (to reflect location (ZZ—A%: transaction price,

Investment properties Income capitalization

age and maintenance) (7)%-25%)

BB () RHER
(ARBR IS - B R RE)

Capitization rate (derived 6.25%

the higher the

fair value
HEERDR

DRERS

The higher the

located in Switzerland approach from monthly market rent)  (2015: 5.79%) capitalization rate,
Rtz REWE WA B A% EALLE(REATS (ZE—1%F: the lower the
HEPT4E) 5.79%) fair value

ERtEER@mS

NRAETE
Market monthly rent rate 10 The higher
mEFAEE X (2015: SFr10) the monthly

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong and the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per square
feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium or discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Switzerland is determined using income capitalization
approach by reference to the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties and assessed by
reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units.
The capitalization rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rate observed by the valuer for the similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.

per square metre market rent rate,
FERXK the higher the
10 fair value

In £ ARB BAMS
(ZZE—RF: Mexras -
108 £JAER) ARERR

URPBEREB2RENEZARE
TERTSLERETE  HE2ET
HEBMEREFHREF T KER
HEXNEZAHEE BEREEHE
YEE B 2 B T & (BT B 8H
EXSUBAR/)FLRAE - MYWELD
EREHETERE  SEREEM

BZRARENERS -

URHETHREDENRARBERAR
ANERELRYEMB AT HAER
BI5GB - AT AT AR A
BRMESRETE - MEANERE
Fo 3 T 2 PR A e % (B B BRI & 3 4R X
ME W R WREMGESEY
BERMERAZNANBETHE -
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.

The changes in fair value of investment properties
amounting to HK$262,000 (2015: gain of
HK$40,481,000) are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.

Translation difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income in “exchange reserve”

(b) The Group’s investment properties outside Hong Kong with
carrying amount of HK$5,252,000 (2015: HK$5,358,000) are
registered under the name of other persons in trust for the
Group.

(c) At 31st March 2016, certain investment properties of

HK$229,116,000 (2015: HK$175,900,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 24.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

% (48)
BREMENARAETE (])

(i) F=ZERAAEGEEHN (E)

FFEERANGBEDERMELEY
B oo

WEWER R E S E262,0008 T (=
T— R F ¢ 40,481,0007 Tz ) 2

ERXEZRNEMEE K E[E S
BImwER -

AEBANE B AIMbE R £ 885,252,000
B (- T — A4 : 5,358,000/ 70) 2% E
METBRLEAEEETAZEMALTET

B3l -

RZFBE-RF=ZA=Z+—-R EHE
229,116,000 7T (—=ZF —H 4 : 175,900,000
BIT)METREMXBIFRITERELR
BRI EE24
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17.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries

2016:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Place of
incorporation or
establishment
or registration/

at 31st March

Paid up
issued ordinary
share capital/

17. MBS

R §5 ER R B 5F

ATRIIVN-ZZ-—RE=ZA=+—HETEWER

AR

Proportion of
issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMBR L BEHERTER ERRAMBERITRE/ -
WEARAE BEHE BE/IRER AMERZED TEXK
Directly Indirectly
H# A&
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
EBEAES 10,0007 7 100% - RERR
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
It 1,875,00037 )% 2 marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% RERSHEeRRERE
BEAEH (LB ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Watch trading
BRRA of China*
HREARLRME 128,403,300 A R - 100% BHED
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
BRERN(BE)BRAF 0 3,000,000 - 100% FHRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares = 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FR)BRAA 0 5,000,000 - 100% meERRERE S
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares - 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
Ve EFHE (HR)BR AR B 3,500,100 - 100% mifERIEEES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Company Limited (Note) watch trading
AR EERERAF (Hi7) B 20,000,000 - 100% nEERRERES
MGEEEERKEERAA The People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
HREAR LM 1,000,000A K ¥ - 100% BHRED
Wakmann Watch (Shanghai) The People’s Republic RMB500,000 - 100% Watch trading
Trading Limited of China*
BA (L) ERESERDA hEARAME 500,000 A & & - 100% BEREH
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
RBRAER /B 1% 100% - NERBERRE
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * BRIBEFEAREMBEAEZEMAZEINEDE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEPEAREMBEEEFMABRADE -

domestic enterprise.

Note: The Group holds 50% of the issued and paid-up capital of Wakmann
Watch (International) Company Limited (“Wakmann”) before 31st
March 2015. Under the supplementary agreement dated 31st March
2012, the Group controls the composition of the board of directors of
Wakmann. Therefore, the Group controls Wakmann and classified it

as subsidiary.

On 31st March 2015, the Group acquired additional 50% of the

et R-E-RAF=R=+—HZA  AEEHER
REBABRERAF ([HRS])50%E &E1T R
REAR - RE_Z-——"F=ZA=+—B2Z2HRDH
o AEEESR R EEER AN - At - A
SEZHERERGEERMBEAT -

RZF-RAF=A=+—R AEEAREA=S

equity interest in Wakmann at a consideration of approximately
HK$2,099,000 and Wakmann became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company as at 31st March 2015 and thereafter.

FEIN 250 % e s - 1B 497/32,099,000/8 7T -
FtERER-_TE—AF=ZA=+t—BREEK
BARNBN—HE2ENB AT -
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S ERRBAE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. OHBEZRS
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—FEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Investments in BER
Club debentures, net (Note) &S - F8E (ML) 6,720 6,767
Unlisted equity securities in BB I TR
Hong Kong FH 950 950
7,670 7,717
Note: VR
The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of the club SHESFEARENE WEMESFZARBIIZ2R
debentures has been determined by reference to the bid price quoted in the FmBELrBEENEE BE-_TE—"F=A=+—H
second hand market. The decrease in carrying amount of HK$47,000 for the LIEFE - & AR EER E47,0008 L (Z T — R4 -
year ended 31st March 2016 (2015: increase of HK$190,000) was due to the #{5190,000 T) * NEAESHZ AR EEMN -
decrease in their fair values.
19. INVENTORIES 19. &8
2016 2015
—B-AEF —T-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Watches 3 &
Raw materials Rk 41,402 44,021
Work in progress F B 494 659
Finished goods SRR 275,794 327,487
317,690 372,167
At 31st March 2015, certain inventories of HK$120,901,000 were R-F-—A%=ZA=+-8B HFTHEE
pledged as securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 24. No 120,901,000/ T E I IERIBITERNER - #F
inventories were pledged as at 31st March 2016. BERMT24 RZE-—REF=ZA=ZTHLERF
BIERER -
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRRAXZFESRAIAGREBRERNDM
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or mr
loss is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEZRHEE 659,665 548,830
Write-down of inventories FEMR 11,898 24,370
Reversal of write-down of inventories GFEHRERD (2,902) (2,648)
668,661 570,552
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Bt 5 ER 2R Bf 51
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BSRH fih EUYE
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 e AR
— Third parties —%5=% 14,159 14,564
- Related parties —FENA 2,173 4,213
16,332 18,777
Allowance for doubtful debts REEEAE (2,510) (2,552)
13,822 16,225
Other receivables H A 8 AR 3R
- Third parties —$£=7 3,410 1,159
- Related parties —FERA] - 3,914
3,410 5,073
Loans and receivables B R EWEE R 17,232 21,298
Deposits and prepayments Re kBN HE 7,547 17,177
24,779 38,475
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables RIE-—RER-ZE-—R"F=ZA=1+—HFKKE
at 31st March 2016 and 2015 approximate their fair values. ZESREMBYERRZREEEQLEES -
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be B2 5 & H M EURIBTEE A R —F R sk
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. wRAEMR -
(a) Aging analysis (a) IRESHR
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its AEBETHEEHANBE180H 2EEH -
customers. The aging analysis of the trade receivables of R EBR - BEEZEE B RIRREREE
HK$13,822,000 (2015: HK$16,225,000) at the end of the 2 B 5 U B 213,822,000/ 7T (T —H
reporting period based on invoice date and net of allowance & 116,225,000 7T) 2 BRik D ATAA T ¢
for doubtful debt is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days B H#3 %90 H 11,178 11,678
91 to 180 days 91£180H 504 415
181 to 365 days 181%=365H 1,310 1,515
Over 365 days 365H LA £ 830 2,617
13,822 16,225
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of the trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against the trade
receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components
is as follows:

20.

SARHth EUIRR (&)

(b)

8 ARUERRIE A

BB SRR BEER T E B RER
E BRIFAEEERB O BB SRR AR
HERERIERI - EUBERT  REEBES
HEMBEE SRR -

ENREZBRESD (BEENRLAE
182515) I RF R ¢

2016 2015

—E-XRF —T—A1F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET

At the beginning of the year REH) 2,552 -
Translation differences mE (60) -
Impairment loss recognised MR 2R EE K 18 2,552
At the end of the year RER 2,510 2,552

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables as at 31st March 2016 is a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of HK$2,510,000 with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$2,569,000. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

As at 31st March 2015, the impairment of trade receivables
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$2,552,000 which were fully impaired.

Trade receivables that are not impaired
The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired, based
on due date, are as follows:

(c)

RZE-R"F=ZA=+—Be#HFE Ll
75 FE YR BR OB (B 2 B TS (8 51 FE U BR R
2,510,000/8 7T R (B BB (L BB AT 2 BR |
E{E/32,569,000/8 7T) ° &% 5|5 {8 7Y FE 1R
RRERINZFUBRERREF D RN
A2 e -

RZE—AFE=A=+—H EREZR
18 75 18 5| FE U B 552,552,000 7T )3 15 1Y #
% KE2HEE-

i {8 2 8 A EUARR

RFZNHE - pEER R BIRRIEREZ
B RBERERRITAT

2016 2015

=B-REF —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FETT FET

Neither past due nor impaired 3 f 58 B SlORUE 9,647 11,636
Less than 90 days past due # Hf 7R 90H 1,959 457
91 to 180 days past due #HI912=180H 1,251 1,515
Over 180 days past due #HA180H LA 965 2,617
4,175 4,589

13,822 16,225
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. SR HEthEUKRR (£8)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued) (c) EFEZSIAMUER (48)
Trade receivables are generally due within 90 days from the —REE S EWRARHIRE HHEI0E NE
date of billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor H o AR E s B S RURREIET
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there BREWETARREHRIEPA -
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate mEEREsERKEFREZRBIRF
to a number of independent customers that have a good Bl ZERPEAEEB ZEERHELT -
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BEBRTF&ER  BEERA ZSEHHEA
management believes that no impairment allowance is EHRERE  NENEEEXTESERE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been B BESRDERIET2HE - REBEW
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are BN EERTAEAERR -
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
21. TRADING SECURITIES 21. BHRE
2016 2015
—E-XE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Listed equity securities at fair value EHEHFEZARE 689 8,239
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing ETBHFZARBUAREEHREWNT Z2EAE
bid price at the end of the reporting period. TREE o
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22, REeRREEFEN
2016 2015
—E-AF T —h*%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Cash at bank and on hand BROTGEREFERS 33,332 23,037
Less: pledged bank deposits R BEERRITFER
(Note 24) (Hi7t24) - (1,483)
Cash and cash equivalents in RERE B BRI R &
the consolidated statement of meEReREXRIT
financial position and the MReRREEEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 33,332 21,554
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 22. RERNLEEN (8)
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and RIE—RE=ZA=+—BAEEETH AR
in hand of HK$21,802,000 (equivalent to RMB18,183,000) held in CH4RECEEHDOERTRFERS A
the PRC as at 31st March 2016 (2015: HK$8,856,000 (equivalent 21,802,0007% 7& (% 718,183,0007T A & #)
to RMB7,075,000)). The conversion of RMB denominated balance (ZZ— A F 8,856,000/ Jr (48 % 17,075,000
into foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign- TARME)) - AR BEREREINERZSE
currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are SNEHBRRITERERRTPRE AL 2 ER - ¥
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange 2| B BRI AR B SNE B IR (K R B BAHR B3R
control promulgated by the PRC government.
During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market rates which FAN - RIBTZRSETMSH RS @EN
range from 0.001% to 0.35% (2015: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum. TR F E0.001%ZE0.35% 2B (ZE—FRHF :
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no 0.001%%0.35%) ° SRITA KT NN RO I EE
recent history of default. R4 sk 2 (FEBERIRTT
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. B 5K H fih fE {< 8 =k
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 ETIRFX
- Third parties —-%£=5 29,787 36,171
- Related parties —BE QT 75 2,589
29,862 38,760
Other payables and accrued charges HithENRARESER 50,134 41,435
Accrued interest to a director NT—BEEFZZFHE 1,211 5,220
Financial liabilities measured N HK AT EZ 2R BE
at amortised cost 81,207 85,415
Rental received in advance TE Y & 96 75
Deposits received Bllkize 4,117 4,031
Other tax payable H b EMEIE 68,927 82,490
154,347 172,011
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables at RZE—RAFR-_F-—AR"F=-A=+T—HAXKH

31st March 2016 and 2015 approximate their fair values.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables of the Group are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

23. SBARHEMERIRR (8)

RIEHR - REKNER2BHZENE IR
RERDTAT

2016 2015
—REF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days ENEZ=90H 25,616 32,508
91 to 180 days 91£180H 6 1,085
181 to 365 days 181%2365H - 502
Over 365 days 365H A 4,240 4,665
29,862 38,760
24. BANK LOANS 24, RiTEE
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans WITIEE
- secured — B 44,976 37,100
- unsecured —EE A - 24,981
44,976 62,081
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as follows: WITERZRASEINAT
2016 2015
—~E —AhF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHETT FET
Current liabilities mEBE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment within ~ —F R E|HEE RITZER
one year which contains a repayment on Ho BiERERBHRER
demand clause 44,976 62,081
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S ERRBAE

24,

25.

BANK LOANS (Continued)

The Group was unable to comply with certain financial covenants
during the year ended 31st March 2015. On 10th June 2015, the
Group entered into an amendment agreement with the bank and
certain original financial covenants were revised with effect from
1st September 2014. The Group was thereafter able to meet all
the revised financial covenants under the amendment agreement.
The Group repaid all the corresponding bank borrowings during
the year ended 31st March 2016.

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group obtained new
banking facilities and the Group was able to meet all the financial
covenants imposed by the banks as at 31st March 2016.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans ranged from 2.98% to
4.79% (2015: 5.00% to 6.16%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2016 and 2015, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in note 34, (ii)
corporate guarantees given by the Company, (iii) subordination of
the payables to the group companies owed by Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of rental income from certain
investment properties.

LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR

24,

25.

RITES (])

RBEE-_ZT-—AF=A=+—BILFEHH K
SEREBETETHBRO -R_FT—HFNA
TR ARBEERITERER HE - A RETE
FRUBRLY  WHR_T—WFLA—BER-
REBBERENT EEETHE A KET M
BRY -RHE-_ZT-R"FZA=+—RHILLFE
HRASED HRARNIRITER -

BE-T-RF=ZA=+-"BHZFER ~&HE
ESFNRITHEERRAEEEHHEN -
—AREZAZ+-ARTRENMBEFBRY -

BRITE BRI AR -

KEBZRTERERFE (HREREHFE)
HEN FRFEE2.98%54.79% (T — F F -
5.00%%6.16%) 155 o

RIE—RFER-_T—XR"F_A=+—H &
HERITE R T A FE34FT I B B E I - (ii)
AARARRHRZABER (AT EARN(F
) BRABREE QR ZIXEENFIB K(iv)H
ETEREVWEHRSWANDE -

EEZEE

2016 2015

—E-RE i e

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FEr

At beginning of the year REF] 47,000 52,000
Addition during the year F AL M 25,000 13,000
Repayment during the year FREE (15,000) (18,000)
At end of the year RER 57,000 47,000

The loans are unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong dollar
prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and repayable
on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ER 2R Bf 51
26. PROVISION FOR STORE CLOSURE 26. [EHAEERIE
2016 2015
—E-XF —T—-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REA) - 7,634
Store closure expenses paid BENEHEEZAY - (7,639)
Exchange difference ERERE - 5
At end of the year REKE - -
The provision for store closure was made in connection with the MEBERTEANTEEHEESINTEEIR
close of various retail stores including the compensation to be BEMEGN 2 MEMELOIEREERE -
paid to landlords and onerous lease contracts.
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. BERIEGE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (a) BHEAZEEHRIESIE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the WEAARMBRAER SR ERETHAR
statement of financial position and the movements during the B2 AR REZFHMT -
reporting period are as follows:
Revaluation
of properties
MEELR
HK$°000
FET
Deferred tax arising from: ERBEEERE
At 1t April 2014 RoE-mEMA—A 6,736
Charged to profit or loss FABR 54
At 31st March 2015 RZE-—RFE=-RA=1+—H 6,790
At 1st April 2015 R-ZF-—RFMWA—H 6,790
Charged to other comprehensive income FAEMRERA 6,519

At 31st March 2016 RZB-—R"FE=ZA=+—H 13,309
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S ERRBAE

27.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$595,968,000 (2015: HK$558,030,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.
Tax losses of approximately HK$71,167,000 (2015:
HK$70,813,000) attributable to the continuing operations
in the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits
that may be carried forward for five years for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax purpose. Tax losses of approximately
HK$25,323,000 (2015: HK$25,204,000) attributable to
the continuing operations in Switzerland are available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
for seven years for Switzerland Profits Tax purposes.

Withholdings tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. At 31st March 2016, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$16,958,000 (2015: HK$15,371,000). Deferred tax
liabilities in respect of these temporary differences have not
been recognised, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC for the period from 1st
January 2008 to 31st March 2016 will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

28. OTHER LIABILITIES

The amounts represented the non-current portion of accrued

rental expenses.
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27. EERIAGIE (4)
(b) KREERZEERAEE

28.

(c)

AEBEEEELE2ARELHEE
1849 5595,968,000/8 L (=T — A F -
558,030,000 L) * FZR —NANEFE
AEHAESE  THAREEBEEEN QA
KRR FERTEF o R AR EFTEEEL T8
A MW ER N EEIEERECHBEE -
BBERTRBER - MBEBBITIg®E - 3t
FECEMERME  BECEEBEN
P2 B EIE471,167,0008 0 (=%
—F4F 70,813,000/ 7C) + A A VB SR K
wmhl c WHEESRT  c BEBRIETRELEN
Fi 75 B 18 £925,323,00008 70 (=T — A F ¢
25,204,000 70) + A AR AR R ANE (7]
BELEmLHER) -

Faioi

REA-ZTTN\E—A—BRERNFED
EFMEHE  BRRANECEREESTIRKE
A B R % 10% TR B =%
TNF—A—BRER - HPEENEDE
KEEMBRZREZETEHRIBEILH
A RBEBHIREGR - RZTTNFZ
RZ+Z=H - EB N 7 B 7 (2008)1
oREE_ZEEEFT-_A=+—AXER
B M SR & P& o BRI 2 iR S AR VR AR
FEBREEREAROET A ERCEN -
RZZE—RF=-A=1+—8 BEWBLA
Rk M = 24888 /216,958,000
JL(ZZ—FA4F 15,371,000 7T) - AR
NERGI AL @R P BB QR AR S
BUEHERUARAEERBARRNC
EENF—HA—HBHE_Z—RNFE=Z/=+—
HEIMAF BEREAFE - EaERAERK
CEOR MR ZEEREER ZEERIE
BEMARER -

Hih&(F

ZeRNEAHEHNIERB ALY -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BBk
2016 2015
—E-KRE —T—RF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.2 each Amount HK$0.2 each Amount
BREME BlREE
0.2} 8T 2 0282
ZTEREB *8E TERHE B
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
Fhg FET Fhg FET
Authorised: EERA
At the beginning and at the end ~ REFMF X
of the year 2,500,000 500,000 2,500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At the beginning of the RE YR B
year 1,566,866 313,373 1,366,866 273,373
Issue of new shares pursuant to  RIERD B & ZH1TH R
share placement (Note) (K &) - - 200,000 40,000
At the end of the year RER 1,566,866 313,373 1,566,866 313,373
Note: it -

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 24th September 2014, the
Company issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.255 per
share for cash consideration on 8th October 2014 towards the capital base

of the Company.

R-ZZF-—WE+ANE  ARBRE-_F-NFNA
ZHMAZESHE MRS KESTR0.2558 LT
200,000,000/ % i % A 12 58 A8 A B B AN FiE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

30. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

30. MRigEmfEEH

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (a) WBARIESHE
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company RZEBEZ_FALAZ+H  AARIMKREHE
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the HHBRETZ (ST FEE R
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Z]) o  —EE - FHEREIE Y BNIEE
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to BERERABRNABRLARIRERREE Y
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its MBERARRNRIRERG 2EE  —TZT =
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders FHERETENEGERERABOAAT R
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option PR Bl S AT BE B A R E Rl E B -
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related ST EEREB BB  REBA KX
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company BER 5 sy A &) SR MY B A B sk A
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or BB R R E SRS 2 T HERE - K
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company b A S A (T PN A R E N = MNS 1
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any customer of EAEBE AR 2T AEF  s(iv)ARA R SHE
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any BN ENGIE AR E) NG ¥ 32 =
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any BEEEN-
affiliate.
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: )y BHEZGEREEEDT
Period during
Category of  No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
RERAL BB Date of grant conditions AT share options
ZHE EREZA REAH BB BRENER SRAGEE BREZGNE
Directors 8,139,075 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344 10 years
S —E-—fF of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 1.34438 T T4
ZA=1+-H pELASE—F(20%) Z—T-ZF=A=1+HZ
“Z--5=f=+H
2 years from the date
of grant (20%)
BB HERF (20%)
3 years from the date
of grant (20%)
M EBE=F (20%)
4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B A RN F (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE A SR RF (20%)
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30.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(U]

30. RRigEtm{E1Eml (4)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(Continued)

No. of share
options
granted

BB
BREHA

Category of
eligible
persons
RERAL
2P E

Date of grant

REAH

Vesting
conditions

FREM

(a) IEARIESH SN (48)

iy WHZERREFEAT @ (&)

Period during
which share
options are
exercisable
AfTE
IR K ER

Exercise
price per
share

Contractual
life of
options

BRAKE RBREZSNH

Employees
BT

34,917,365

Director

B

10,022,061

31st March 2011
—E——F
ZA=+-A

26th October 2011

—Z——f
+RA=+x8

1 year from the date
at grant (20%)
i A E i — £ (20%)

2 years from the date

of grant (20%)
B i A R F (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR B HRE=F (20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
h B R mE (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
B AR F (20%)

1 year from the date
at grant (20%)
R A e —F (20%)

2 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR B HRREF (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
h A SE=F (20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
ML EHEmE (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mfk T AR (20%)

30th March 2012 to
30th March 2021

“E-—f#=fA=1H
—Z--f¥=R=1H

HK$1.344
1.3448 T

25th October 2012 to
25th October 2021

ZT-Zf+AZ+HH
F2%2-%

+A-+%A

HK$0.897
0.8978 T

10 years

T4

10 years

TF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

30. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(i)

share options are as follows:

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

30. RrigEtm{E1Eml (4)

(a)

Bz iEst 8 (5F)

(i) EBAEZBE R NEFHTEENT

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEFY BREHE T BRESRE
TEE 1T1EE
HK$ HK$
E T BT
Outstanding at the EY) AT
beginning of the year 1.344 21,410,900 1.212 34,072,661
Forfeited during the year F AL 1.344  (1,055,880) 0.990 (12,661,761)
Outstanding at the RNER B ARITHE
end of the year 1.344 20,355,020 1.344 21,410,900
Exercisable at the REEAITEE
end of the year 1.344 20,355,020 1.344 17,128,720
The options outstanding at 31st March 2016 had NZE—XNE=ZA=+—08 " BEKR1TE
exercise prices of HK$1.344 (2015: HK$1.344) and a BIREZTEB13d4B T (ZE—F
weighted average remaining contractual lives of 5 years 13448 7T) RINEFEEFBE D
(2015: 6 years). FHSE (T —RF : 6%F) °
Share Award Plan 2010 (b) BRREEENEHEI (B —BF)

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 2010”).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015 and as at 31st
March 2016 and 2015, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2010.
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 31. RSB RN ERE e
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EARFHARRE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHEIT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB AR ZHEZR 268,394 302,719
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A 8 Y AR 3 149 149
Cash and cash equivalents BekBSEEY 5,409 8,063
5,558 8,212
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A B /BB 2 B) 508 13,371 13,379
Other payables H A & 5 BR 3K 2,964 3,155
16,335 16,534
Net current liabilities RE(AE) EEFE (10,777) (8,322)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAR 257,617 294,397
Net assets EEEE 257,617 294,397
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital & A< 29 313,373 313,373
Reserves ki 31(b) (55,756) (18,976)
Total equity attributable FEREQAFAFEEFA
to owners of the Company Z R 257,617 294,397
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30th June 2016 and signed on its behalf by:
RZT-—RNFAA=-THARESESRARRETE YR TIESRERESE
Eav Yin Eav Guech Rosanna
Bz B
Director Director
- o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 31. "SRRI EREiEEE (8)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AATREEERE
The change in the reserves of the Company during the years REBE_T—AFR_E—RF=ZA=+—
ended 31st March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: HiEzFEHHEAARARBEZSHNT -
Share
Share option  Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
BhRE
R &E i BABH B sz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T Tir T FET
At 1st April 2014 KZE-MEMA-A 133,610 21,577 17,524 (196,244) (23,533)
Loss for the year KEEBR - - - (3,937) (3,937)
Other comprehensive income HEthrEha - - - - _
Total comprehensive FEREEBRAE
loss for the year - - - (3,937) (3,937)
Transaction with owners BBBEALRS
Shares issued pursuant to REZENREZTRN
subscription and placement 11,000 - - - 11,000
Share issue expenses BROHER (1,300) - - - (1,300)
Recognition of equity BRREEENRAAER
settled share-based THMERZ
payment expenses - (1,206) - - (1,206)
Transfer to accumulated REREREKEAZ BE
losses upon forfeiture
of share options - (3,585) - 3,585 -
At 31st March 2015 R_E-RE=fA=1-H 143,310 16,786 17,524 (196,596) (18,976)
At 1st April 2015 RZE-REMA—H 143,310 16,786 17,524 (196,596) (18,976)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - (37,349) (37,349)
Other comprehensive income Hith2E MR - - - - -
Total comprehensive TE2ARREAE
loss for the year - - - (37,349) (37,349)
Transaction with owners BREALRS
Recognition of equity BRREREEURN
settled share-based BERLANAT
payment expenses - 569 - - 569
Transfer to accumulated NG E R
losses upon forfeiture BAZHER
of share options - (667) - 667 -
At 31st March 2016 RZE-AE=f=1-H 143,310 16,688 17,524 (233,278) (55,756)
o g ZE R E A IR A E]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

(b)  Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in Note 3(g).

(¢)  Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 3(s).

(d) Capital reserve
The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

(e)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

(f) Share option reserve
The share option reserve relates to share options granted to
employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 30.

(9)  Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve represents accumulated gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those investments are disposed of
or are determined to be impaired.

(h)  Distributability of reserves
In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
At 31st March 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2015: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015.

R EE B4R

R §5 ER R B 5F

. QSRR &R G RE (F)

Hat -
(a) B 15 4 B

Bin i BRARE - NN\ —FBRERFEFL0
\x(%“‘ﬂ/uT)((@T/ﬁj)%ﬁﬁ

(b)  EfLFEE

B ERAEN S AERANKONEEIN
BHEL - LIRBH QT BB LB RETE
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from cash at banks and trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with
licensed financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Group monitors the exposure to each single
financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 20.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

R §5 ER R B 5F

32. MHEREIR (F)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBEERE ()
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual TREASEFLEREERREN
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the KZBTAHRNERE (BEERSHER
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on LB HFRAE 2 F B 0FE) - RIS
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest R MEFAERTBRENE) R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SEAREFEXN & FHBFE :
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for loans which contain a repayment on TEE BESAREEAZERNE
demand clause which can be exercised at the creditor’s TEZEREERKEZGEZIZEHERM
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow SO MBRENRER AR BRMNK
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be (B s (5 A 35 B 182 55 2 fE {6 4 4 1) BD
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their HEEEN) cRFHECRERHE -
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate EMRTEE R BE ST IIRIETE
effect. TEENAEER -
2016
—E-REF
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BRRITR ZR—F8 R—FR&
REE HREeREBLE DPRME HRER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER KR 81,207 81,207 - 81,207
Bank loans RITEE 44,976 44,976 - 44,976
Loans from a director BEE2ER 57,000 57,000 - 57,000
183,183 183,183 - 183,183
2015
“Z-hfF
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than oron
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BRRITE LZHR—F8 R—FR
REE RensRs DPRME HIEE K
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ES BRI 85,415 85,415 - 85,415
Bank loans RITEE 62,081 62,081 - 62,081
Loans from a director BEZVER 47,000 47,000 - 47,000
194,496 194,496 - 194,496
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ¥R R B 5F

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

32. MHEREIR (F)

(a) MHEREE(E)

(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The table that follows summarises the maturity TEREBIMELRENER HZEEKRE
analysis of loans with a repayment on demand clause KEERAZERERBEZERE
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in B ZeEREFERAHANX
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest FTE R B BERBI AR K E A
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking BRI RRREERBERATK
into account of the Group’s financial position, the AREMTHEHBIBEEZKABFER - K
directors of the Company do not consider it probable RAIEEMRE ZSEFBEREER
that the lenders will exercise its discretion to demand BEECETESXBHES -
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.
Maturity Analysis - Term Loans subject to a oM - REECHEEBEERERE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled RZEHER
repayments
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted
less than less than cash
Within 2 years 5 years outflows Carrying
1 year SR—F SRME ERRIE amount
R—ER BORME BIREFE REREBELE REE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2016 ~ R=Z-AE=A=+-H 104,762 - - 104,762 101,976
31st March 2015 RZZE-RE=A=1—H 111,924 - - 111,924 109,081
(iii)  Foreign currency risk (i) ShE 2 7

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR B EE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 32, IEBRSIE (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE (&)
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) F& @ f
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in AEEEHBBEEBHRTER (M
relation to variable-rate bank loans (Note 24) and loans 24) MR EB) 7 REE SRR KA —F
from a director (Note 25). EEENR(ME25) 2Rk -
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk N5 B 2 IR AR TR R R B DA T
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant RIZEEKNFEREB) 7 & A E K F
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. RFHBT o AN EE I E (I E T F
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial ZeRMBEEANEFAER  REXE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the EWEFEATES TR PEGER -

Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile iy FIEHR
The following table details the interest rate profile TERFMAEE 2 BEREARE
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the HAR Z B SRAEBR

reporting period:

2016 2015
—E-KE —Z-ThfF
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
BERA= BB %
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FET FET
Variable rate borrowings: MEBARER
Bank loans BITEE 2.98 15,000 5.00-6.16 62,081
Loans from a director EREZER Hong Kong dollar 57,000 Hong Kong dollar 47,000
prime rate quoted prime rate quoted
by HSBC plus by HSBC plus
1% per annum 1% per annum
EERTET ELRTET
BEEAE REENE
MEFE1% MEFE1%
72,000 109,081
Fixed rate borrowings: EERREN:
Bank loans RITEE 4.79 29,976 - -
Total borrowings BES 101,976 109,081
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rate, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the Group’s loss before
taxation for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$720,000. Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in response
to the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

At 31st March 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rate with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss before
taxation for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$1,090,000. Other components
of consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2015
has been prepared on the same basis.
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32. MHEREIR (F)

(a)

MEEREER (&)

(iv) FIF @z (&)

(i)

FRE DT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

R §5 ER R B 5F

i ¥ bR E IR (4])

Capital management (b) BHRERESIE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REFBEBEAZBEEABRERRNZER
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue BRI LA ESERE  FRELEBRIRA
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners REREESHKTEEAZLR - FBEE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The BeKANEGERAEE R BIEE
management reviews the capital structure by considering HRERNGEE - BERNN  ANEBBUER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each AEEREE BN BOYTEE - BT
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its MR RBETHEEXBELRARAEE - LFEE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, HER A R R AR o
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is REBUEEHR(EAETFABERIABKRA
net debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated BRI ERSER - BRFESE AT
as bank loans, and loans from a director less pledged bank ERREEERRCEFRTER - MRS
deposits and cash and cash equivalents as shown in the RIBESEEMNEEMBRRARR - &5
consolidated statement of financial position. Total equity HEEAREFIY c ANEB S EIRBE—
comprises all components of equity. The Group aims to BEBENEAEARBILERKE RAAFEEHIKR
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing EBELLERMT :
ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as follows:
2016 2015
—RF —HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Bank loans (Note 24) RITEE (M t24) 44,976 62,081
Loans from a director (Note 25) BEFE2ER(H:#25) 57,000 47,000
101,976 109,081
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) 30 : IR& MIB L ZEY (K :122) (33,332) (21,554)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 22) BEARITIF R (H7222) - (1,483)
Net debt BRFHE 68,644 86,044
Total equity MR 405,775 411,236
Gearing ratio fBEE L E 16.9% 20.9%
Equity price risk (c) BREEERmEB
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading ZJ&;%@,/J%XX Q LTTEAEEME EZHX

of listed securities classified as trading securities in the

consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity

analysis has been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.
At 31st March 2016, if the quoted market prices of the JrAp—_

trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss
before taxation would decrease or increase by HK$138,000
(2015: HK$1,648,000) as a result of changes in fair value of

investments.

%‘%{ET%H»

TFW—LI‘A

B BRARPED A

T—-R"F=ZA=+—H
MISME LT T B®R0%ME A EZE 4
AEBZBHAIBESEREZ R

>3 3% 11138,000/8 7T (=&

E&W iy Tﬁ)’ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ(ﬂéz%
RIE ©

HEEZES

T—rT“
nREESHMED
— R4 : 1,648,000 T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager
performing valuations for the financial instruments, including
available-for-sale investments and trading securities which
are categorised into Level 2 and Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy, respectively. The team reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting
date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with
the chief financial officer and the audit committee is held
twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

32. MHEREIR (F)

(d)

BRREBRAEZDZARBASE

B

5
b

TREJAEESHMTAZARE  %5F
ARREMRZEREEEFE  UDER
ERP B MEERF3 - AAEAEMA
EZ=AEBRZAARERE - SRR EFE
DEZEBBRTIZELTHEN EMBRAK
BZABREREREMEE

s FREE:AREBEFERERSE —
FBE - MRNAERREBERREER
BENERMIS 2 RKEHBERE -

o FAMAE: AREERAE AR
& BRI BRI AR EDSE - &
WARERBERTAERRZHE - TA]
BRZBERETSHREY NERZ
iz -

e FZHMHE: AREFEEBERT
ABE . HE -

AEEFEERYBERERE  ERY SR
TRETHE BEIHLERERERR
o BERARERENRIRY RE—RRE—
& ZEGEZANBEEYBENEZRES
WE - SFENTHMEEREA D - ZE K
ERBAEMLAAEEHOMHNMEERS I
HERUBEETERNLE aFUBE
MEZZEGHMENBRENGERGFET
MRE o BB wmE A%

2016 2015
ZE-RE “Z-1F
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERBTE EXTER EXTUEE REETS EBEATEE EXTIHEE
ZHE BAHE WARE B BALR BAEE
(-5 (B=%) (B=8) am (F-&) (B=f) (B=H) ag
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value ZEMAAE
measurements iE
Assets -1
Available-for-sale EHEs
investments RE - 6,720 - 6,720 - 6,767 - 6,767
Trading securities E5EE 689 - - 689 8,239 - - 8,239
Total BE 689 6,720 - 7,409 8,239 6,767 - 15,006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015, there
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and bank and other borrowings are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31st March 2016 and
2015 because of the immediate or short term maturity of
these financial instruments.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial
instruments.
i) Trading securities
Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an
active market at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.
ii)  Available-for-sale investments
Fair value is determined by reference to the bid

price quoted in the second hand market without any
deduction for transaction costs.

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its
related parties:

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is
as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

i ¥ bR E IR (4])

(d)

(e)

RREBRARDZ2ARBHE ()

REBE-Z-—RAFA-T-—RFZA=1—
BILFEME UEE-RRE R ZHEN
B RBASIEHE =R - AEBEZBE
RN ZmE R RELHE - BRI AR EER
Z M EE -

AEBEZzeMT A ZEREEETIEK AN #
HAAAR  ReMReEEY  BHK
H b e AR K ﬁﬁ%&,ﬁéﬁﬁfﬁgﬁ%\&ﬁﬁ
REMEE EAOREBERZZT—RAFR=
/\¢ A=+—BXE\EEKRTRH - MIEZ
SR T AR HAA B AR -

N EnG st

LA T #BEat AR e d & AREZEER

EMRE -

i) FEHEEE
DR ETDREERT S 2 WHE AE
R E BRI HBRAEMRZ ZEA 2 T
HEE -

i) AHHEZRE

RAETIBZEE_F IS THBRAEM
R ZMRANE ANBRE M HE
33. EABHEALRS
FAAEEREBBEALAEATZRS
(a) EEERASHHM
AEETZEBRABHH  BEIXNTAR

RIEERET&ESHAL (MM 10PTHE)
ZEBMT

2016 2015

—NE —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Short-term employee benefits EHEBRER 12,219 13,709
Post-employment benefits RIKEREF 54 70
Share-based payment expenses LARR D B B 2 13K 275 (1,880)
12,548 11,899

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
9(b)).

(see Note

Me@BEE st ATE I A](RHTF9(D))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. SAEBRMEALRS (@)
(b) Financing arrangements (b) BIFETHE
2016 2015
—RE T —h%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Loans from a director EE2ER 57,000 47,000
Accrued interest (Note) 2 F B (i) 1,211 5,220
58,211 52,220
Note: HtaE -

i) As at 31st March 2016, Mr. Eav Yin, the two related companies
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by
Mr. Eav Yin and the Group entered into a netting arrangement,
pursuant to which these parties agreed to set off the total
balances of HK$7,049,000 owed by the two related companies
with the accrued interest payable to Mr. Eav Yin.

ii) The amount is included in “trade and other payables” to the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Details of the new loans and loans repaid during the year are
disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

WRZE—R"RFE=A=1+—H" I’%fi%ié
EEL IR R e T S A I ) R 2
RARSETFHEERGE - Bk L
TXEH IR 15 5 HE B JE ST A R B B R
7 1 838 1 A48 R B 4R 87 %E7,049,000/8 7T ©

J«%

if) FZHRABREEGEPHRRROE S RE
M ERFR -

FRNEBEERRTEFTFERNEEMBRE
B sE25FR HH 5E o

(c) Other transactions (c) HithxxH
2016 2015
—NE —ZET—HEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Sales of watch movements to SHEFHREET
a related company ultimately BLCEEZTHREERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B 5’6%? %’J
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —MHEE 690 1,223
Provision of subsidised advertising RHESEEHR
and marketing support to a MBS IE
(2015: two) related company ultimately FTHCEEZEFEEESR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin RigC s
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —EE QT
(ZE—A%F :MmHE) (i) 2,496 1,161
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HERAZEREET
three related companies ultimately BCEEETRERER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin kG- fjiii %U
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 =ERE (if) 2,036 1,970
Purchase of products from two MGCEEZTFREER
(2015: four) related companies ultimately MG g %U
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Z PERBEER
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin (ZZ—AF: E )
REEM (iii) 271 2,738
Consultancy fee paid to SEME T HICEE
a related company ultimately EFHREEER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin [ A 2 %‘J
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 — R 889 827
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Other transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing
support services

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015,
the Group participated in the marketing programs
and activities for promoting and enhancing the
image of branded watches supplied by the related
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav
Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin. In return, the
related companies subsidised the Group by paying an
advertising subsidy to the Group.

Leasing of offices and warehouses

During the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2015, the
Group leased an office and warehouse space to three
related companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr.
Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin.

As at 31st March 2016, commitments under operating
leases receivable from the companies over which
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and

R §5 ER R B 5F

33. EARMEALRS (&)

() RS (M)

() RHERSEMREDHIEEREIERE

REBEE_T—RAFR_ZT—X~F=A
=t+—HIFEHM  AEBREBE
ChRESTFTRREBRBCEELT
MREAE N R 2 TiB BT 8 F
g DUEERNIE REFENTER - B
MR 2 AR R A EE A E S B
EREBAEH -

-

=

>

(i) HEMWAZEREBE

=

RNEE T —RAFR-_T—R~"F=A
T-BILFEHE AEERSH
ARERRERMTFBLCEAEZ FEK
BERGCEERVN=TM@ELR -

MRZE-RF=ZA=1+—0 RBREL
BHEANERAR (BBCELEET
REFER BB ARG ZAE) K

controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows: HEEENT ¢
2016 2015
= —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than one year R—FR 964 1,720

Later than one year and HBBA—FRTBBRE

not later than five year - 346
964 2,066

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 0.25 to 5 years (2015: 1 to 5 years) and related
commitments are included in Note 36.

Y E IR KEBRR T F0.2555%F (=
T-FF: —ERF) RABEAEZRE
7B R BT 7536 o
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R §5 ¥R R B 5F

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Other transactions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(iii) Purchase of products

The Group purchased of products from the related
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin during the years ended
31st March 2016 and 2015 which represented watches,
watch spare parts and components (including watch
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and
repairs to these related parties. The purchase of
products includes the fees and charges for these
services.

(d) Balances with related parties

33. EABAMEALRS (@)
(c) Efth3x5 (&)
Hrat - ()
(iii) FEBER

RIE—RAFR T —RF=A=1+—
AIEFESE AEERBLCEES
TEREBBRBLCAEZEFNEEA
AIEBEMPETFE®R FEERZTI
R B (B FEEN) -« EEEY
KRB - REBIIMF AL - T
MEBRY  PImEHTEEALTR
EREE HEEMPEZEREN
BRARKE -

(d) BAEALTLER

2016 2015
—E-AKF —ZT—AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from WG EEET
one (2015: three) related company BB RGLCAERES 2
ultimately owned by the —H(ZE—RF: =@)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled HEARE S REAMER
by Mr. Eav Yin (Note) (Hizt) 2,173 8,127
Trade payables due to one (2015: two) ERGCEEZFHREESR
related company ultimately owned R R RS 2
by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and —H(ZT—RF : W)
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin MENTE SRR 75 2,589
Note: Brat -

As at 31st March 2016, Mr. Eav Yin, the two related companies
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr.
Eav Yin and the Group entered into a netting arrangement, pursuant
to which these parties agreed to set off the total balances of
HK$7,049,000 owed by the two related companies with the accrued
interest payable to Mr. Eav Yin.
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34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. SEIRP
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were AEBETHERTEERBEENT :
as follows:
2016 2015
—E—-XE —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Land and buildings T RETF 14,435 642
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRE 18,055 519
Investment properties A 229,116 175,900
Inventories 7E - 120,901
Pledged bank deposits B RITER - 1,483
261,606 299,445
35. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 35. RERTIEHMEHRE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme REERMEBBEARBE IR Y —HRGHMER
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF B ([mEe])TE - ZRESHE ZEERK
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds SBEZEESFAEFA  AIRANESHAEE -
under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the HIBHERFPNBRABESETENRIKERAA -
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents contributions ERNAEBIZRBEST SR THANHREEZR
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the BIESET BN -
rules of the MPF scheme.
Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state- EHRBEZECEITDNERBET ZENRTENE -
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. ZERREHEBHPRBTER - AEBEKET
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their HaezETHO  BBRKETEELER NEE
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only EZRARER 2 BEE  ERIEASZHEEL
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to R o
make the required contribution under the scheme.
AT EEEY Annual Report 2016 |119

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the reporting period was
HK$7,294,000 (2015: HK$4,726,000). At 31st March 2016, the
properties held have committed tenants for lease terms from 0.25
to 7 years (2015: 0.11 to 2.08 years), whose tenancy agreements
include paying security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as
follows:

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. &E

RmEHBAAE 2 YWEE S WA R7,294,000%
TL(ZZE—FAF 4,726,00087T) - R-ZT—/"F
ZA=Z+T—H BB ZYELERTERENT
0.25F 27F (ZE—RF : 0.11F£2.08F) 2
4 HEHEERBREINERERSE -

AEERBEBART T 2 AAREEEZERD - K
R EEKESERIPERAT

2016 2015

—E-REF —T—FEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year TiE@R—F 6,463 4,056
Later than one year and not B —F T HBOF

later than five years 13,393 2,858

More than five years HBiRAF 4,335 -

24,191 6,914

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail stores
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.5 to 6 years (2015: 0.25 to 6
years). Certain rentals for the use of retail stores are determined
by reference to the revenue of the relevant retail stores for the
year and the rentals for certain retail stores will be escalated by a
fixed percentage per annum.

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable
leases of office and retail store space. Future minimum payments
under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

fERRIAE

AEBRBECEHELHBAEETHAZEWER
TEEM - KSERZMEHRE MR R0.5F 264
ZT—FRF :0.25FE6F) c 5 TTEEHNMA
CEUZFEREOTEEHOBAATE - I
BETZEERHNASSUETH T REE -

AREENHEESTETERRETARBEINIAE
TEFERE - BETRHEEE 2 RRRES
U

2016 2015

—B-AF —T-HF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Not later than one year TiEB@d—F 98,877 104,958
Later than one year and not A —F TR

later than five years HF 175,215 322,334

274,092 427,292
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgements in the selection and application
of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

(@) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i) Provision for store closure

The provision for store closure of the Group consists
of provisions for store closure costs, compensation to
landlords and other related costs.

The Group recognises and measures a provision for
store closure costs as a provision for onerous contract.
In accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, an onerous
contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.

The Group recognises a provision for store closure
based on the estimated unavoidable costs of meeting
all leases and other obligations under the retail stores,
net of economic benefits expected to be received from
the stores, if any. The Group estimates the provision
based on the amount of compensation payment agreed
with the landlord as a result of early termination of
leases, unfulfilled lease obligations, and economic
benefits estimated to be received from fulfilling the
lease contracts. Management also consults with
retail agencies for certain locations in respect of the
current market trends. The Group also estimates the
provision based on past experience of payout ratio
of the total compensation to the landlords. Estimates
differ depending on the current rent, location, lease
exit terms and management’s assessment of when
the lease term can be terminated early and expected
benefits to be received from fulfilling the leases.
Except for stores which termination contracts have
already been agreed with the landlords, the settlement
of these contracts may be different from the Group’s
estimation subject to the negotiation with the landlords
and the economic benefits estimated to be received.
The Group recognises a provision for compensation to
employees when the Group has a detailed formal plan
for store closure and has communicated the plan to
the employees affected by it. The Group recognises a
provision for other related costs when obligations for
direct expenditures necessarily entailed by the plan
for store closure and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the Group arise.

37.

R §5 ER R B 5F

[ &2 2 51 FIBR B2 14 5t

NRRUSHHBEY ERERREREEE
5t BB 2B {8 M 0 61T f O 8 B B
B LTI AN RN B REE
B TR B3 % B AL IR o R R
CEEEEYNSCEE R
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RERASESFHHRENBRET  BEED
R AT Z &t I

() BREHEE

A& B S RIEMEHE BB RIERE
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BAE AR BHE

AEEER NG EIEHEARARE
ERBEANRE - REFEEHER
ST M AARABBRIAREE]
BE BEAHERBANERTAN
BAET » 85N A] 8 % m B A R 5
ARz BREENSH — DA -
BHIET Z AT A R BR 4R 1 %
BRMRIERFRA - IIRRETAL
MEEMKARERERITANMESE
B (R4 (B S A BT M 2 P RO BURBIRR -

AEERAEHERBELRESE
ERHTAMAEEREMEMET Ha
BN AR R KA - B TR R AT S
MBI M EEME (E) - REEG
SR BELIREERFIERERRILHE
0 RBOHERD - METHEARY
ity 5t 1% & 15 A0 48 78 ) 2 T =8 JE /O 48 (B
SR EBRENE LB E AT
LBEHATENE - AKETRIE
BERRBELAETEINOIMNLEE
et BE - Bt EERFRAEE
B HERILGER  UREEE
Al 7E & HAPR ) B A SR AT 4% 1L R AT
HAGW R NIRRT - REKRER
EIRIEANNERIN  BRLES
MEREE MAKEM G AR
R B2 15 B DA B A 5 T 2 S
EERETE - B AR EEEHA

BT —HAENERGE XTHAXR
BWBTHEEZXFIER AKREER
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RO AMAERXHAE MAEIFEILA
SEHFEEBREES  AEBKR®
REMAARE B A A B -
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37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(@) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 16 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to valuation of investment properties
and fair value of share options granted. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)  Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write downs requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write downs of inventories in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. As at 31st
March 2016, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$317,690,000 (2015: HK$372,167,000).

(i) Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. Impairments are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may be uncollectible. The
identification of impairment loss requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
original estimates, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and impairment loss
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31st March 2016, the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables is HK$17,232,000 (2015:
HK$21,298,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision
in accordance with the prevailing tax rules and
regulations, taking into account any special approvals
obtained from relevant tax authorities and any
preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each
location or jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate
current tax provision based on the prevailing tax
rules and regulations and its current best estimates
and assumptions. In the event that future tax rules
and regulations or related circumstances change,
adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial
position. As at 31st March 2016, the carrying amount
of current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
are HK$3,465,000 (2015: HK$3,548,000) and
HK$13,309,000 (2015: HK$6,790,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

38. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38. BIEIERRIRERIEER 25
On 31st March 2015, the Group acquired an additional 50% of the R-E—HAFZA=+—H AEEKERZS
issued shares of Wakmann Watch (International) Company Limited SERAR ([Ee2)]) 8B 250% 2 1T
(“Wakmann”) at a consideration of approximately HK$2,099,000. 7 RE# /2,099,000 7T - RIKEEH » EE
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest in Wakmann SRR HIME SR E 4 A5,710,000/8 T © 4~
at the date of acquisition was approximately HK$5,710,000. SERERIEE B 25 R 15,710,000 BT - AR
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of BN ARREA A Z RIS 3,599,000 7T °
HK$5,710,000 and an increase in equity attributable to owners RAFEEAN BERAQRNREEABFAEZASE
of the Company of HK$3,599,000. The effect of changes in the ERESS M FERMAT

ownership interest of the Group in the equity attributable to
owners of the Company during the year is summarised as follows:

2015
—T—nF
HK$’ 000
FET
Carrying amount of non-controlling WHEIF R IR R 2 BRE A
interests acquired 5,710
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests St FIFE BRI B s 2 R (& (2,099)
Transaction costs X 5 AR (12)
Gain on acquisition recognised within equity A 7 R RE AR 2 IR Y e 3,599
39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. IRSHAESEIA
In April 2016, the Group repaid the bank borrowings of RMB5 RZZE—REMA - AL EEES5,000,0007T AR
million (equivalent to approximately HK$6 million) to a bank in & (}8E 7 496,000,000/ 7T ) RIIRITE R T HE
the PRC. In April and May 2016, the Group drew down bank AN—ERT R NENALKRA  K&EH
borrowings of approximately HK$40 million from a bank in Hong & B —RIR1TIE 440,000,000/ THIRITE
Kong. o
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40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016
Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2016.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.
New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle®
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'
Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture?
Amendments to Investment entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 consolidation exception?
and HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers’
HKFRS 16 Leases*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative®
Amendments to Clarification of acceptable methods
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation®
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer plants®
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity method: separate financial
statements?®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2018.
2 Effective for annual periods to be determined.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2016.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2019.
R s
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40.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should
recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest
on the lease liability, and also classifies cash payments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-
of-use asset and these lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for these two types of
leases differently.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of application
of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of the application of HKFRS 16
until the Group performs a detail review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHHB

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #HZE—-ZT— R NF=-A=+—HILFE

RESULTS

¥ E
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—-HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
T ZT—=F ZT-WF ZT-HF IZEB-KF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T FET FET FET
Revenue B A 1,036,249 1,098,593 967,353 718,580 834,394
Loss before taxation W B AT 518 (50,728)  (208,351)  (152,990) (34,973) (35,625)
Income tax FRi R (10,042) (393) (196) (54) (53)
Loss for the year FEEE (60,770) (208,744) (153,186) (35,027) (35,678)
Equity attributable to RN
owners of the Company PAN/NEIES YN (60,770) (208,746) (153,278) (30,936) (35,678)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR IR R A 2 - 2 92 (4,091) -
(60,770)  (208,744)  (153,186) (35,027) (35,678)
Basic loss per share BREXRERE (6.12)¢ (20.76)¢ (11.21)¢ (2.11)¢ (2.28)¢
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #HE—-ZT— NF=-A=1+—HILFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES aEHad

......

As at 31st March

R=B=+—H

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—T——F ZT—=F ZT-NF ZT-HF IZEB-KF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAEr FET FET FET

Total assets BEE 1,075,672 1,053,139 840,152 731,979 704,830

Total liabilities FES=R 527,356 506,112 433,672 320,743 299,055

Net assets BEFH 548,316 547,027 406,480 411,236 405,775
Equity attributable to HERARA

owners of the Company BEAZER 538,609 537,318 396,679 411,236 405,775

Non-controlling interests IR E R 9,707 9,709 9,801 - -

Total equity BRERTE 548,316 547,027 406,480 411,236 405,775

0

SHe

o

i

EEEHARAE

128 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

